
 

 

Stargate School will provide a differentiated program designed specifically to meet the needs of identified 
intellectually gifted learners in order to challenge each student’s academic abilities, support their unique 
emotional needs, promote individual character development and encourage a life-long love of learning. 

 
 STARGATE SCHOOL GOVERNANCE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Regular Business Session Meeting held at Stargate School in the Performing Arts Building  
November 20, 2019 

Regular Business Session, 6:00 PM 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 6:00 PM 
 

The meeting was called to order by Elizabeth Williams at 6:00 PM. 
 

2. OPEN SESSION  
 

A. Welcome: Elizabeth Williams welcomed staff and community members. 
 

B. Roll Call: 

Board Member Title 
Attendance 

Present Absent 
Elizabeth Williams President X  

Teresa Walsh Vice President X  

Samantha Howorko Treasurer (Independent Director) X  

Mark Hoopes Secretary X  

Lisa Hosfelt Parent Director X  

Traci Nicks Director X  

 

Staff  Title 
Attendance 

Present Absent 
Michael Henderson Executive Director X  

Lynne Allen Director of Operations and Finance X  

 
Community Attendance 

Community Members 28 
 

C. Reading of the Stargate Mission: Samantha Howorko 
D. Recognition and Appreciation:  

- Mr. O was recognized for the success of the 5th grade musical. 
- Samantha shared a story of a parent who decided to move to Colorado so their high schoolers could 

attend Stargate.  She also recognized Jane for the launch of the Fundraising Website.  
- Kevin West with the Adams 12 District was recognized for the expulsion training 
- Mr. O was congratulated for the musical and the Grant Committee who assisted Mr. O’s production. 
- Mr. J and Adam in the theater department were recognized for their work in the play. 
- Stacy Hall was recognized for her assistance in transitioning one of her students.  

  

 
Stargate School Governance Board Meeting Minutes                            November 20, 2019 Page 1 of 7 

 



 

 

Stargate School will provide a differentiated program designed specifically to meet the needs of identified 
intellectually gifted learners in order to challenge each student’s academic abilities, support their unique 
emotional needs, promote individual character development and encourage a life-long love of learning. 

 
E. Board News / Events Attended:  

- Traci discussed attending the Community Coffee and the National Honor Society induction and the 
National Association for Gifted Children Conference.  

- Mark discussed attending the National Honor Society Induction and school play and the Fall High 
School Academic Awards night. 

- Elizabeth discussed attending the play. 
- Teresa discussed attending the play and the presentation on vaping. 
- Samantha discussed attending the Expulsion Training. 
- Lisa discussed attending the Community Coffee and Expulsion Training. 

 
Elizabeth made a statement on behalf of the Board discussing the leadership change; however, the Board cannot 
comment on personnel matters.  Elizabeth thanked Missy for her time at Stargate and clarified Michael’s role as being 
comparable to a superintendent.  Public comment time was extended to allow those in the community to speak. 
  

3. REVIEW / ACCEPT AGENDA 
 

Motion to approve the agenda for the November 20, 2019 Governance Board Meeting as discussed.1 
 

Motion Second For Against Abstain 
Elizabeth Williams Samantha Howorko 6 0 0 

Motion Passed. 
1 The following changes were discussed: 
- An update from the Recruiting Committee will be presented in 7G. 

 

4. MINUTES 
 

A. Review / Approval of Minutes: 
 

Motion to approve the minutes from the Governance Board Business Meeting held October 23,  
2019 as discussed. 2 

 
Motion Second For Against Abstain 

Elizabeth Williams Teresa Walsh 5 0 13 
Motion Passed. 

2 The following changes were discussed: 
- Page 1, Section D, clarify the recognition to Aiden Paul: “senior citizens in the community”. 
- Page 4, Section H Unified Improvement Plan. 
3Mark abstained due to his absence during the October 23, 2019 meeting.  

  
5. SCHOOL OPERATIONS 

 
A. Director of Finance and Operations, Lynne Allen, provided the following updates (see Attachment 5A): 

- The Finance Committee will discuss a revised meeting schedule (e.g., quarterly vs. monthly). 
- Lynne provided a year to date performance update and KPIs. 
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- Evergreen Development continues to develop the site at 144th and Washington.  Starbucks will be 

the first tenant. Their waterline will be connected to Stargate’s and as a result, a refund of $260,000 
will be obtained and put towards the new parking lot. 

- The new Community Funded platform has launched and received over $10,000 in donations in less 
than one week.  

 
i. Financial Audit 

o Chris Parker from Hinkle & Company presented the results of the 2019 Financial Audit and 
the final opinion.  The Final audit report will be  available on the website under “2019 
Audited Financial Statements”.  

 
Motion to accept and approve the Stargate Charter School Financial Statements written in the  
auditor’s report for June 30, 2019.  

 
Motion Second For Against Abstain 
Samantha Howorko Mark Hoopes 6 0 0 

Motion Passed. 

 
ii. Banking Update  

o Lynne is looking to move to JPMorgan Chase & Co. for Stargate’s banking account and 
purchasing services due to several benefits to the school (see Attachment 5A6) 

 
B. Executive Director of Academics Report, Michael Henderson provided the following updates (see 

Attachment 5B): 
i. Update on the Special Education Audit 

o On November 4 -6, The Collaborative for Exception Education conducted a Special Education 
& Gifted and Talented Program Review.  They reviewed paperwork associated with IEPS and 
ALPs.  Interviews with elementary teachers and parents were conducted on the second day. 
Similar interviews were conducted on the third day at the secondary school. 

o The review highlighted existing strengths, including new leadership, staff mindset and 
experience (growth mindset), and the facilities and environment being conducive to gifted 
learners (i.e., break out spaces and chair options). 

o The review pointed out  opportunities for development including improvements in data 
driven decision making, collaboration between classroom teachers and the learning services 
departments and a disconnect of a student’s ALP and IEP plan. 

o Collectively as a K-12, a shift in thinking needs to occur in order to move from general 
education to a true gifted education program.  

 
C. Introduction from Karin Ranta-Curran, Interim Compliance Officer 

i. Non-Discrimination Policy Updates  (see Attachment 5C) 
o Karin discussed proposed changes to Non-Discrimination Policy. There are no substantive 

changes to the expectations, procedures or legal requirements.  Changes include simplified 
policy language to make the policy more accessible, a clarification on retaliation, and 
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removal of references to Section 504 (non-discrimination based on disability) which will be 
extracted into a standalone policy.  

 
 

Motion to approve the 1st Reading of the Non-Discrimination Policy as discussed. 
 

Motion Second For Against Abstain 

Elizabeth Williams Lisa Hosfelt 6 0 0 
Motion Passed. 

 
6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

A. A parent voiced concern regarding communication of the recent leadership change.  Specifically, the lack 
of information and point of reference.  The parent felt that the communication was dismissive of Missy’s 
contribution to the school and urged the administration to reconsider how future communications are 
framed.  

B. A parent thanked the Board for clarifying the role of the Executive Director and questioned why the Vice 
Principal is not stepping into the role as the interim principal.  The parent voiced concern over 
leadership and communication.  

C. A parent/current staff member thanked Missy for her impact on her children.  The parent implored the 
community to come together to trust the leadership and the Board for the betterment of the students.  

 
Elizabeth thanked the community members for their attendance and comments and encouraged those with 
questions to contact: governance@stargateschool.org. 

 
7. BOARD OPERATIONS: COMMITTEE REPORTS 

A. Community Relations (see Attachment 7A) 
- Mark discussed the attendance levels at CRC events, future planning and community communication 

options. 
B. Elections (no written report) 
C. Finance (Written report only – see Attachment 7C 
D. Fundraising (Written report only – see Attachment 7D) 
E. Fundraising Allocation (no written report) 
F. Grant (Written report only – see Attachment 7F) 
G. Recruiting (no written report) 

- Alex Zasimova provided an update from the Recruiting Committee including the recent election that 
occurred in September, reestablishing the Recruiting Committee and raising awareness of the 
various volunteer opportunities.  

H. School Accountability (see Attachment 7H) 
- Becca Borden provided an update on the Unified Improvement Plan (UIP). 

 
Motion to approve the 2019 UIP as presented.  

 
Motion Second For Against Abstain 

Lisa Hosfelt Traci Nicks 6 0 0 

 
Stargate School Governance Board Meeting Minutes                            November 20, 2019 Page 4 of 7 

 

mailto:governance@stargateschool.org


 

 

Stargate School will provide a differentiated program designed specifically to meet the needs of identified 
intellectually gifted learners in order to challenge each student’s academic abilities, support their unique 
emotional needs, promote individual character development and encourage a life-long love of learning. 

 
Motion Passed. 

 
- SAC provided suggestions on updating the Parent Survey including removing the question relating to 

school lunches and clarifying the retaliation timeline (e.g., within the past year) on the Staff Survey. 
- Both Surveys will open January 6th and close January 20th.  
- Staff will be given time on the Professional Development Day on January 6th to complete the survey. 
- The Board discussed the question regarding fundraising on the Parent Survey. 

 
Motion to approve the Parent Survey Questions for 2019-2020 from the SAC, as discussed.  

 
Motion Second For Against Abstain 

Teresa Walsh Lisa Hosfelt 6 0 0 
Motion Passed. 

 
Motion to approve the Staff Survey Questions for 2019-2020, as presented by SAC.  

 
Motion Second For Against Abstain 

Teresa Walsh Elizabeth Williams 6 0 0 
 

I. Website (see Attachment 7I) 
- Lisa Griffin recommended creating a policy for ADA compliance.  
- Mark will work with Lisa to format the draft policy for a first reading.  
- Lisa discussed the plan to decommission the old website. 

 
8. BOARD PLANNING: ACTION ITEMS 

A. Policy Update 1.2 Committee Charters – 2nd Reading 
 

Motion to approve the second reading of the revised Committee Charters policy (document 1.2), as  
discussed. 

 
Motion Second For Against Abstain 

Elizabeth Williams Traci Nicks 6 0 0 
Motion Passed. 

 
B. Policy Update 1.4 Admissions Policy 

- Updates will be provided at the next Board Meeting. 
 
C. Updated Board Meeting Calendar  

- The Board discussed possibly canceling the December meeting and decided to hold the meeting as 
scheduled with a limited agenda and no updates from committees 

 
9. BOARD PLANNING: DISCUSSION ITEMS 
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A. Plan for presentation to the Adams 12 Board 

- Teresa and Elizabeth will plan to attend the presentation to the Adams 12 Board with Lynne and 
Michael on January 15th. The presentation will be reviewed by Kevin West, the Adams 12 District 
Liaision.  

B. Strategic Plan Check-in 
- Lisa discussed the layout of the Strategic Plan and proposed a plan for execution. 

C.  OCR Summary Update (see Attachment 9C) 
- All OCR cases have been closed. 

  
10. FUTURE PLANNING: BOARD CALENDAR  

- Next Board Meeting – December 18th.  
- Admin Sync Meetings – Scheduled for December 10th  and January 14th 
- Upcoming Events – None  

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 

 
A. Motion to adjourn at 8:24 PM. 

 
Motion Second For Against Abstain 
Elizabeth Williams Lisa Hosfelt 6 0 0 
Motion Passed. 

 
 

List of Attachments: 
5A - Finance and Operations Report 
5A1 - Consolidated Detail 
5A2 - Community Funded Letter  
5A3 - Financial Statements October 2019 
5A4 - 2019 Stargate Charter School Financial Audit 
5A5- 2019 Stargate Charger School Audit Management Letter 
5A6 - Banking Update   
5B - SPED Audit Executive Summary – Stargate 2019 
5C - Non-Discrimination  Policy – Suggested Edits 
 
7A - CRC Committee Report 
7C - Finance Committee Minutes 
7D - Fundraising Committee Minutes  
7F - Grants Committee Report  
7H1 - SAC Minutes 
7H2 - Stargate UIP 
7H3 - Parent Survey Questions 2019 
7H4 - Staff Survey Questions 2019 
7I1 - Website Committee Report 
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8A - Revised Board Policy 1.2 - Committees 

 
9B - Strategic Plan Tracking 
9C - OCR Monitoring Status 
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Finance/Operations Update-November 20, 2019  

 

 

Year to Date Performance and  KPI’s 

09/30/19 

 

KPI Actual Budget 

Cash Reserve 20% 30.4  % 20% 

    

Budget Performance    

Revenue >100% 35.65% 33% 

Expenses 33.28% 33.28% 33% 

    

Revenue 

Distribution 

   

Salaries and 

Benefits 

>60% 61% 70% 

Rent Expense <25% 13% 15% 

Other Expenses <15% 18% 15% 

    

Surplus/Loss  8% 0.00% 

    

 

  

 

October financials are attached. Other Purchased Services include charges for Outdoor 

Ed at Cheley and Keystone Science School this month.  

 

The final audit will be presented by Hinkle and Company. Copies of the final audit and 

management letter are attached. 

 

Evergreen Development- Site work continues at 144th and Washington. Starbucks will be 

the first tenant in and their site is currently being excavated. 

 

 

Community Funded- The annual campaign went live this month on our new giving 

platform. A copy of the introductory letter is attached.  Feedback has been very positive. 

We received 18 donations on the first day of launch and have received over $10,000.00 in 

donations in less than a week.  



8

Stargate School

Income Statement

For the Period July 1, 2019 through July 31 31 , 2019

July 2019 August 2019 September 2019 October 2019 Year to Date Budget Actual/Budget

Revenues

Enrollment for PPR 1,007,570.00$         1,007,570.00$      1,007,570.00$      1,007,570.00$      4,030,280.00$      12,005,368.00$    33.57%

Eagle's Landing Tuition 67,060.00$              45,999.00$           50,733.00$           55,971.00$           219,763.00$         625,870.00$         35.11%

Food Service Revenue 1,057.00$             2,131.00$             3,188.00$             13,000.00$           24.52%

Mill Levy Funding 169,779.00$            169,780.00$         169,780.00$         169,780.00$         679,119.00$         2,135,158.00$      31.81%

Grant Funding 85,136.00$           155,828.00$         240,964.00$         272,343.00$         88.48%

Local Sources 52,957.00$              90,339.00$           181,215.00$         31,670.00$           356,181.00$         366,920.00$         97.07%

Capital Construction Funding 33,320.00$              33,320.00$           33,251.00$           33,300.00$           133,191.00$         427,160.00$         31.18%

Interest/Investment Income 4,149.00$                3,956.00$             3,701.00$             3,627.00$             15,433.00$           76,000.00$           20.31%

GT Funding 3,780.00$             2,520.00$             6,300.00$             7,738.00$             81.42%

Miscellaneous 5,465.00$             3,315.00$             8,780.00$             40,000.00$           21.95%

Fund Transfers (In)

TOTAL REVENUES 1,334,835.00$         1,439,880.00$      1,452,772.00$      1,465,712.00$      -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     5,693,199.00$      15,969,557.00$    35.65%

-$                     

Expenses -$                     

Salaries 566,691.00$            634,052.00$         676,210.00$         678,620.00$         2,555,573.00$      7,983,790.00$      32.01%

Benefits 221,195.00$            246,937.00$         212,537.00$         213,118.00$         893,787.00$         2,783,831.00$      32.11%

Purchased/Professional Services 67,375.00$              48,573.00$           35,588.00$           24,866.00$           176,402.00$         457,100.00$         38.59%

Purchased Property Services 11,563.00$              22,936.00$           35,282.00$           48,014.00$           117,795.00$         475,639.00$         24.77%

Other Purchased Services 22,402.00$              22,601.00$           24,142.00$           82,147.00$           151,292.00$         268,035.00$         56.44%

Centralized Administrative Services 33,660.00$              34,147.00$           34,147.00$           34,147.00$           136,101.00$         375,032.00$         36.29%

Supplies 117,283.00$            58,888.00$           46,923.00$           40,164.00$           263,258.00$         636,636.00$         41.35%

Dues and Fees 188.00$                   300.00$                11,861.00$           7,230.00$             19,579.00$           15,000.00$           130.53%

Athletics -$                     129,000.00$         0.00%

Furniture 4,272.00$                13,693.00$           9,323.00$             6,038.00$             33,326.00$           4,500.00$             740.58%

Insurance 29,312.00$              4,850.00$             10,630.00$           39,807.00$           84,599.00$           140,000.00$         60.43%

Rent 184,242.00$            183,742.00$         187,374.00$         187,374.00$         742,732.00$         2,354,317.00$      31.55%

Fund Transfers (Out) 25,000.00$           25,000.00$           

-$                     

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,258,183.00$         1,295,719.00$      1,284,017.00$      1,361,525.00$      -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     5,199,444.00$      15,622,880.00$    33.28%

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) 76,652.00$              144,161.00$         168,755.00$         104,187.00$         -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     493,755.00$         346,677.00$         142.43%

6/30/2019 Difference 10/31/2019

General Fund 2,535,003.00$         1,067,259.00$      3,602,262.00$      

SRF Fund Raising 153,103.00$            (14,375.00)$          138,728.00$         

SRF Athletics 2,966.00$             2,966.00$             

SRF Pupil 3,575.00$                1,044.00$             4,619.00$             

-$                     

Escrow Account (Capital Component $260,000) 600,308.00$            303.00$                600,611.00$         

-$                     Principal Fund 351,259.00$         

-$                     Interest Fund 2,463,589.00$      

Stargate Foundation 2,903,724.00$         685,220.00$         3,588,944.00$      Reserve Fund 774,096.00$         

SPED Reserve Account (GF component) 200,065.00$            20.00$                  200,085.00$         

ColoTrust (GF component) 2,006,325.00$         15,106.00$           2,021,431.00$      

3,588,944.00$      

12/12/2019 at 8:42 PM Page: 1



Community Funded Letter 

 

We are pleased to introduce Stargate’s new annual giving platform as we roll out this year’s annual 

campaign. 

Each year we ask families to donate to the school to help provide funding for resources that fall outside 

of the school’s operating budget. Over the years these funds have provided support for school 

improvements and projects of all kinds. This support has been, and continues to be, critical to Stargate’s 

ability to deliver the finest educational product possible for our gifted students. 

Colorado’s funding model for K-12 education presents ongoing challenges for charter schools to provide 

and maintain quality facilities, provide competitive salaries and benefits for teachers and staff, and 

maintain cutting edge technology and curriculum infrastructure in the classroom.  Stargate’s 

conservative approach to fiscal management over the last 25 years has positioned the school well 

through our expansion into high school and for the future. Our operating budget and long term budget 

planning model provides for the basic operating needs of the school and for appropriate compensation 

for our staff. 

Over the past couple of years we have looked at the changing needs of the school and the community in 

light of our overall expansion, our educational landscape, our extracurricular offerings, our expanding 

classroom and technology needs and our students needs in general. 

Please visit Stargate’s website at www.stargateschool.org and click on XXXXXXXXXXXXX. Our new 

partnership with Community Funded facilitates directed donations to a number of areas of identified 

need for the school. As a donor you are able to choose the amount of your donation and which program 

it will support. You can also reach out to friends and family to encourage them to support the same 

cause. Our requested annual campaign donation is $100.00 per child.  All cash donations to Stargate are 

100% tax deductible. A tax receipt will be generated when your donation is made. 

Funds donated to General Fundraising will continue to support all classroom and grade level  requests, 

as well as startup funding for materials for clubs and activities at all grade levels. 

Stargate’s largest outstanding project and greatest area of need is our capital campaign to construct 

additional parking and loop capacity at the south end of the elementary building. This is a two phase 

project . The immediate goal is to raise $275,000 for Phase I which will include an 800’ asphalted loop to 

connect to the new access from 144th. It will also include all of the site work to eventually install a 

permanent  parking lot with 100 additional stalls (Phase II).  This parking lot will be designated for any 

elementary families who wish to park and walk their children in to school. Phase I of this project will 

include a temporary overflow parking lot with crusher fine fill. 

In thinking about fund raising support for Stargate, please take a moment to revisit participating in King 

Soopers neighborhood giving program and Amazon Smiles. These are simple, passive ways that raise 

funds for our school at no cost to you.  We currently have 254 families enrolled in King Soopers program 

generating ~$7000.00 per quarter simply because their King Soopers account is linked to Stargate as 

their charity of choice. Please click here for instructions on how to enroll in these two programs. 

http://www.stargateschool.org/


 Adopted Budget 

 Actual

Year-to-date 

 

% of Budget  Adopted Budget  Current Month 

 Actual

Year-to-date 

 

% of Budget 

Estimated

Year End

 % of 

Budget 

Beginning Fund Balance 758                      758                      

REVENUES: 100,000              

Band/Orchestra 895                      120                      

Elem STUCO 1,551                  

MS STUCO 2,400                  1,942                  

HS STUGO 8,564                  1,240                  9,123                  

Library 2,079                  1,216                  

Elementary Clubs 164                      50                        

Secondary Clubs 3,865                  205                      205                      

Secondary Competition 9,312                  

Spiritwear/Sportswear 702                      

Yearbook 12,469                

Athletic Tickets 2,284                  

CRC 9,083                  445                      11,077                

Discretionary 7,127                  

Prom/After Prom 13,103                

Mountain Biking 4,998                  1,959                  -                      

Drama/Theatre 18,022                

TOTAL REVENUES -                           96,618                100,000              1,890                  25,692                -                           

EXPENDITURES:

Salaries 15,128                

Benefits 2,519                  

Purchased Professional Services 5,391                  20,000                353                      

Purchased Property Services 1,500                  

Other-Purchased Services 38,699                20,000                2,429                  10,920                

Supplies 33,250                50,000                5,707                  11,326                

Property-Equipment 1,846                  

Other Expenses -                      10,000                493                      2,349                  

-                           -                           -                      

-                      -                      -                           -                           -                      

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                           94,987                100,000              8,629                  28,294                -                           

Transfer to General Fund

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -                           758                      -                           (6,739)                 (2,602)                 -                           

Ending Fund Balance -$                    758$                   758                      -                           (1,844)                 

Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Stargate School

Special Revenue Fund

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

31-Oct-19

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Unaudited for management use only



 Adopted Budget 

 Actual

Year-to-date 

 

% of Budget  Adopted Budget  Current Month 

 Actual

Year-to-date 

 

% of Budget 

Estimated

Year End

 % of 

Budget 

Beginning Fund Balance -$                         -                           

REVENUES:

Gate 937                      2,718                   

Meet Fees 1,500                   3,375                   

Middle School Athletic Fees 1,970                   13,410                 

High School Athletic Fees 3,215                   17,905                 

Miscellaneous 97                        287                      

Fund Transfers (In) 25,000                 

TOTAL REVENUES -                           -                           -                           7,719                   62,695                 -                           

EXPENDITURES:

Salaries 12,600                 12,600                 

Benefits 2,418                   2,418                   

Purchased Professional Services 70                        586                      

Purchased Property Services 239                      412                      

Other-Purchased Services 7,663                   15,840                 

Supplies 7,139                   30,455                 

Other Expenses -                       (2,449)                 5,106                   -                       

-                       -                           -                           -                       

-                       -                       -                       -                           -                           -                       

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                           -                           -                           27,680                 67,417                 -                           

Transfer from General Fund

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES -                           -                           -                           (19,961)               (4,722)                 -                           

Ending Fund Balance -$                     -$                     -$                     (19,961)               (4,722)                 

Stargate School

Special Revenue Fund

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

31-Oct-19

Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Unaudited for management use only



Student Enrollment:  1417

 Adopted Budget 

 Actual

Year-to-date 

 

% of Budget  Revised Budget  Current Month 

 Actual

Year-to-date 

 

% of Budget 

Estimated

Year End

 % of 

Budget 

Beginning Fund Balance 994,229$            994,229$            1,936,458$         1,936,458$         

REVENUES:

Interest 36,000                 108,509              301.4% 76,000                 3,627                   15,433                 20.3% 0.0%

Miscellaneous 86,500                 105,295              366,920              31,710                 356,220              97.1%

Services Provide 

Federal Other 74,948                 95,834                 127.9% 75,000                 23,258                 31.0%

State Other 186,157              183,983              98.8% 205,081              158,308              223,966              109.2%

Local Other 200,000              241,136              120.6% 40,000                 3,315                   8,780                   22.0% 0.0%

Mill Levy Funding 1,000,871           1,000,871           2,135,158           169,780              679,119              31.8%

Food Service 17,000                 11,108                 65.3% 13,000                 2,131                   3,188                   24.5% 0.0%

Tuition 275,730              275,295              99.8%

Other

Charter School Capital Construction 418,728              405,826              96.9% 427,160              33,300                 133,191              31.2% 0.0%

Charter School Allocation 10,754,675         10,746,829         99.9% 12,005,368         1,007,570           4,030,281           33.6% 0.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 13,050,609         13,174,686         101.0% 15,343,687         1,409,741           5,473,436           35.7% -                       0.0%

EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS:

Expenditures:

Salaries 6,389,329           6,370,144           99.7% 7,663,770           654,593              1,584,398           20.7% 0.0%

Benefits 2,177,424           1,979,142           90.9% 2,705,365           206,362              599,256              22.2% 0.0%

Operating:

Supplies & Materials 671,395              646,987              96.4% 573,006              37,468                 250,272              43.7% 0.0%

Purchased Services 1,590,029           1,499,100           94.3% 1,825,722           242,104              707,890              38.8% 0.0%

Rent 2,165,686           2,165,686           100.0% 2,354,317           187,374              742,731              31.5%

Capital Outlay

Other 95,000                 86,398                 90.9%

Total Operating Expenditures: 4,522,110           4,398,171           97.3% 4,753,045           466,946              1,700,893           35.8% -                       0.0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 13,088,863         12,747,457         97.4% 15,122,180         1,327,901           3,884,547           25.7% -                       0.0%

Transfers:

Fund Raising Fund Transfer (220,000)             (220,000)             

BASE Fund Transfer (250,000)             (250,000)             215,000              

Bond Fund (120,000)             (120,000)             

Transfer Out to Athletics 25,000                 

Transfer Out to FR 75,000                 75,000                 

TOTAL TRANSFERS (515,000)             (515,000)             215,000              -                           25,000                 -                           

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS 12,573,863         12,232,457         97.3% 15,337,180         1,327,901           3,909,547           25.5% -                           0.0%

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES & 

TRANSFERS 476,746              942,229              197.6% 6,507                   81,840                 1,563,889           -                           

Ending Fund Balance 1,470,975$         1,936,458$         131.6% 1,942,965$         81,840$              3,500,347$         180.2% -$                     0.0%

Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Stargate School

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

General Fund (Unaudited)

31-Oct-19

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Unaudited for management use only



 Adopted 

Budget 

 Actual

Year-to-date 

 

% of 

Budget 

 Adopted 

Budget  Current Month 

 Actual

Year-to-date 

 

% of 

Budget 

Estimated

Year End

 % of 

Budget 

Beginning Fund Balance              995,390            (186,733)

REVENUES:

Rental and Miscellaneous 2,165,685         183,992            735,967            

Proceeds from Sale of Bonds

Miscellaneous Income

Investment Earnings 52,471              4,662                 18,805              

TOTAL REVENUES 2,218,157         188,654            754,772            

EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS:

Expenditures:

Debt Service 1,491,371         

Depreciation 809,941            

Amortization

Issuance Costs 1,003,833         

Loss on Refunding 95,174              

Non Capital Equipment

Bank Charges

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,400,319         -                     -                          

Transfers:

General Fund Transfer 69,552              

TOTAL TRANSFERS -                     69,552              

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS 3,400,319         -                     69,552              

Retirement of Principal

REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES & 

TRANSFERS (1,182,162)       188,654            685,220            

Ending Fund Balance (186,773)           188,654$          498,487            

Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Stargate School

Capital Reserve - Capital Projects Fund (Unaudited)

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

31-Oct-19

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

Unaudited for management use only



 Adopted Budget 

 Actual

Year-to-date 

 

% of Budget  Adopted Budget  Current Month 

 Actual

Year-to-date 

 

% of Budget 

Estimated

Year End

 % of 

Budget 

Beginning Balance 80,559$              151,920$            151,920$            151,920$            

CASH RECEIPTS:

Fund Raising 7                          250,000              19,605                39,819                250,000              

Annual Campaign 492,500              2,751                  0.6% 100,000              1,064                  4,770                  4.8% 100,000              100.0%

TOTAL CASH RECEIPTS 492,500              2,758                  0.6% 350,000              20,669                44,589                12.7% 350,000              100.0%

CASH DISBURSEMENTS

Salaries and Benefits

Purchased Professional Services 5,000                  50,000                160                     5,660                  

Other Purchased Services 169                     3,944                  

Supplies and Materials 306                     300,000              724                     45,227                

Property-Non Cap Equipment 3,000                  

Transfers -                      (75,000)               -                      

TOTAL CASH DISBURSEMENTS -                           (69,694)               350,000              1,053                  57,831                -                           

Ending Balance 492,500$            151,920$            151,920$            19,616$              138,678$            14.1% 151,920$            

Stargate School

Special Revenue Fund-Fund Raising (Unaudited)

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

31-Oct-19

Fiscal Year 2018-2019 Fiscal Year 2019-2020

This fund is used to account for resources obtained from parent organizations, community members/parents and other fund raisi ng organizations and is used to record financial 
transactions related to school-sponsored pupil organizations and activities.  These activities are self-supporting and do not receive any Charter School financial support. 

Unaudited for management use only



 Adopted Budget 

 Actual

Year-to-date 

 

% of Budget  Adopted Budget  Current Month 

 Actual

Year-to-date 

 

% of Budget 

Estimated

Year End

 % of 

Budget 

Net Assets, Beginning 139,919$            36,463$              36,463$              36,463$              

REVENUES:

Tuition 592,500              588,158              99.3% 625,870              55,971                219,949              35.1% 625,870              100.0%

TOTAL REVENUES 592,500              588,158              99.3% 625,870              55,971                219,949              35.1% 625,870              100.0%

EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS:

Expenditures:

Salaries and Benefits 373,635              371,549              99.4% 398,486              30,783                110,697              27.8% 398,486              100.0%

Professional Services 8,725                   0.0% 8,149                   0.0% 8,149                   100.0%

Other Purchased Services and Printing 2,372                   145                      1,061                   

Overhead -                       -                       

Supplies 54,485                40,804                74.9% 63,630                2,696                   12,886                20.3% 63,630                100.0%

Field Trip Admissions/Transportation 30,435                26,130                85.9% 30,435                10,146                33.3% 30,435                100.0%

Depreciation -                       -                       

Contingency -                       -                       

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 467,280              440,855              94.3% 500,700              33,624                134,790              26.9% 500,700              100.0%

Transfers:

General Fund Transfer 250,000              215,000              215,000              

TOTAL TRANSFERS 250,000              -                       -                       215,000              

TOTAL EXPENDITURES & TRANSFERS 467,280              690,855              147.8% 715,700              33,624                134,790              18.8% 715,700              100.0%

NET INCOME (LOSS) (102,697)             22,347                85,159                (89,830)               

Net Assets, Ending 125,220$            36,463$              (53,367)$             22,347$              121,622$            -227.9% (53,367)$             100.0%

Fiscal Year 2018-2019

Stargate School

Before, After, and Summer Enrichment Program-Proprietary Fund (Unaudited)

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

31-Oct-19

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

The Before, After & Summer Enrichment Program (BASE) also operates in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the costs associated with the program are 
primarily financed through user charges. BASE is a fee based program offering before and after school programs, summer progra ms and Kindergarten Extended Day Enrichment 
Programs (KEEP).

Unaudited for management use only



 General 

 Special Revenue 

Fund Students 

 Capital Reserve - 

Capital Projects  SRF-Fund Raising  SRF- Athletics 

 Before, After, 

and Summer 

Enrichment 

Program  Total 

Assets

Assets:

Cash and investments 3,586,418$          4,619$                 3,588,943$          138,728$             2,966$                 122,656$             7,444,330$          

Accounts receivable 4,740                    -                        -                        1,735                    6,475$                 

Accrued taxes receivable -                        -                        -                        -                        -$                          

Due from other funds -                        -                        -$                          

Due from other governments -                        -                        -                        -$                          

Prepaid Expenses 5,345                    -                        -                        -                        5,345$                 

Other current assets -                        -                        -                        -$                          

Fixed Assets 39,718,596          39,718,596$        

-                        -                        -$                          

Total assets 3,596,503$          4,619$                 43,307,539$        138,728$             2,966$                 124,391$             47,174,746$        

-$                          

-$                          

-$                          

Liabilities and Fund Balances -$                          
-$                          

Liabilities: -$                          

Accounts payable 94                         94$                       

Retainage Payable -$                          

Pcard Payable 50,589                 6,463                    50                         7,688                    2,770                    67,560$               

Accrued salaries and benefits -$                          

Payroll withholding payable (130,727)              -                            -                            -                            (130,727)$            

PERA Payable 207,356               207,356$             

Lease Obligation (31,156)                -                            -                            -                            -                            (31,156)$              

Due to other governments -                            -                            -                            -$                          

Due to Other Fund -                            -                            -                            -                            -$                          

Bond Premiun 2,071,726            

Accrued Interest Payable -                            -                            152,325               -                            -                            -                            152,325$             

Loan Payable Current 380,000               380,000$             

Loan Payable -                            40,205,000          -                            -                            -                            40,205,000$        

Total liabilities 96,156                 6,463                    42,809,051          50                         7,688                    2,770                    42,922,178$        

-$                          

Fund balance: -$                          

Nonspendable: -$                          

Investment in Capital Assets -$                          

-                        -                        -                        -                        -$                          

Total nonspendable fund balance -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -$                          

Spendable: -$                          

Restricted for: -$                          

TABOR 350,000               -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        350,000$             

Multi Year Commitments -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -$                          

Government Grants -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -$                          

SPED Reserve 200,000               -                        -                        -                        -                        200,000$             

Business-Type Activities -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -$                          

CPP Preschool -                        -                        -                        -$                          

Pupil Activities -                        -                        -                        -                        -$                          

Committed to: -$                          

Risk Management -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -$                          

Transfer In/(Out) -                        -                        -$                          

Assigned to: -$                          

Future year expenditures -$                          

Unassigned: 2,950,347            (1,844)                  498,487               -                        (4,722)                  121,622               3,563,890$          

Total fund balance 3,500,347            (1,844)                  498,487               138,678               (4,722)                  121,621               4,252,567$          

-$                          

Total liabilities and fund balance 3,596,503$          4,619$                 43,307,539$        138,728$             2,966$                 124,391$             47,174,746$        

Stargate School

Balance Sheet (Unaudited)

Fiscal Year 2019-2020

31-Oct-19

Unaudited for management use only
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5950 S. Willow Dr., Ste. 302 
Greenwood Village, 
Colorado 80111
TEL: 303.796.1000
FAX: 303.796.1001
www.HinkleCPAs.com

Independent Auditors’ Report 

Board of Directors 
Stargate Charter School 
Thornton, Colorado 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the Stargate Charter School, component unit of 
Adams County School District No. 12, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, 
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
basic financial statements of the Stargate Charter School, as listed in the table of 
contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.  

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on 
our audit.  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  The procedures selected 
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.  Accordingly, 
we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinions.  
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Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Stargate Charter School as of 
June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, 
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information listed in the 
table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.   
 
Supplementary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Stargate Charter School’s basic financial statements.  The 
supplementary information listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling the 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America.  In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, 
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
 
 
Greenwood Village, Colorado 
October 28, 2019 
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i 

The  management  of  Stargate  Charter  School  (the  school)  offers  this  Management  Discussion  and 

Analysis (MD&A) of the school’s financial performance to provide an overall review of financial activities 

for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The  intent of this narrative overview and analysis  is to review 

the school’s  financial performance as a whole.   Readers should review  the MD&A  in conjunction with 

the  accompanying  Financial  Statements,  including  the  Notes  to  Financial  Statements,  to  gain  an 

expanded understanding of the school’s financial performance. 

Financial Highlights 

The period  from  July 1, 2018  through  June 30, 2019  is  the  twenty‐fifth year of operation  for Stargate 

Charter School.  As of June 30, 2019, the net position of the school is <$16,523,188>.   

School operations are primarily supported by funding provided for in the Colorado State School Finance 

Act.    Per  pupil  revenue  for  the  year  July  1,  2018  through  June  30,  2019 was  $10,746,829.  Stargate 

experienced an increase in overall per pupil revenues of $440.06 per student compared with the 2017‐

2018 fiscal year. 

Overview of Financial Statements 

 This  review  is  intended  to  serve  as  an  introduction  to  Stargate  Charter  School’s  basic  financial 

statements.   The basic statements are comprised of  three components: 1) government‐wide  financial 

statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. 

Government –Wide Financial Statements 

Government‐wide  financial  statements  are  prepared  to  provide  interested  parties  with  a  broad 

overview of the school’s financial reporting in similar format to a private‐sector business.  The statement 

of net position presents  information related to assets and  liabilities and remaining net position.   With 

historical data,  increases and decreases  in net position may serve as a useful  indicator of whether the 

financial position of the school is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities, or  income statement, presents  information showing how  the school’s net 

position  changed  during  the  year.    Changes  to  net  value  are  reported  at  the  primary  occurrence, 

regardless  of  the  timing  of  related  cash  flows.  Thus,  revenues  and  expenses  are  reported  in  the 

statement that will only result in cash flows in future periods (for example, salaries and benefits earned 

but unpaid as of fiscal year end). 
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Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 

segregated for specific activities, or objectives as designated by Colorado state statute.  Stargate Charter 

School  monitors  these  funds  to  ensure  and  demonstrate  compliance  with  finance‐related  legal 

requirements. 

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 

activities in the government‐wide financial statements, except that the focus of the governmental funds 

is to provide information on near‐term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. 

Stargate  School  adopts  an  annual  budget  for  the  general  fund.    A  budgetary  comparison  has  been 

provided  to  demonstrate  compliance  with  the  budget  as  part  of  the  required  supplementary 

information included in the audited financial statements. 

The Stargate Foundation is considered a component unit of Stargate Charter School (the school) and is 

reported as a proprietary fund.  Information is presented in the statement of net position, statement of 

revenues, expenses and changes in net position and the statement of cash flows. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 

the financial statements. 

Government‐wide Financial Analysis 

For the year ending June 30, 2019, the governmental activities negative net assets of Stargate Charter 

School totaled $16,523,188. The school recognized $350,000 to comply with Article X, Section 20 of the 

Colorado Constitution, known as the TABOR Amendment. An additional $200,000 in restricted reserves 

for Special Education liabilities are held in a segregated account at Wells Fargo Bank. 

As of June 30, 2019, the Foundation had $2,751,399 restricted for debt service. The Foundation also had 

a net position of $<$186,773>.   
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    Table 1: Net 
Position 

   

  2019 
Governmental 

Activities 

2018 
Governmental 

Activities 

2019 
Business Type 
Activities 

2018 
 Business Type 

Activities 

ASSETS         

  Capital Assets   6,188,955 
 

6,299,156  39,528,207  40,338,148 

  Other Assets  3,145,723  2,955,061  2,903,724  2,223,452 

Total Assets  9,334,678  9,254,217  42,431,931  42,561,600 

Deferred Outflows  9,041,823  19,343,116     

LIABILITIES         

Long Term 
Liabilities 

20,204,226  39,091,731  42,276,726  40,715,000 

Other Liabilities  1,020,154  1,474,773  532,325  851,210 

Total Liabilities  21,224,380  40,566,504  42,809,051  41,566,210 

Deferred Inflows  13,675,309  1,576,637     

NET POSITION         

Net Investments in 
Capital Assets 

6,188,955  6,299,156  <3,128,519>  <1,041,852> 

Restricted for Debt 
Service 

    2,751,399  2,037,242 

Restricted for 
Special Ed 

200,000  200,000     

Restricted for 
Capital Projects 

0 
 

345,304     

  350,000  350,000     

Unrestricted  <23,262,143>>  <20,740,268>  190,347   

Total Net Position  <16,523,188>  <13,545,808>  <186,773>  995,390 
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    Table II: Change in 
Net Position 

 

   

  2019 
Governmental 

Activities 

2018 
Governmental 

Activities 

2019 
Business Type 
Activities 

2018 
Business Type 
Activities 

GENERAL 
REVENUES 

       

Per Pupil Revenue  10,746,829  9,506,227     

District Mill Levy  131,084  140,193     

Capital 
Construction 

405,826  334,291     

Miscellaneous  964,509  5,835  <1,099,007>   

Investment Income  108,564  25,877  52,471  23,005 

PROGRAM 
REVENUES 

       

Charges for 
Services: 
Instruction 

757,493  858,046     

Charges for 
Services: Support 

14,659  49,309     

Grants‐Restricted  436,646  177,266     

Gain on Sale or 
Asset 

       

TOTAL REVENUE  13,565,610  11,097,044  <1,046,536>  23,005 

         

EXPENSES         

Instruction  9,022,128  10,470,353     

Supporting Services  5,436,250  5,610,523     

Foundation      2,301,312  3,089,613 

Total Expenses  14,458,378  16,080,876  2,301,312  3,089,613 

Transfers  <1,945,685>  <2,877,403>  2,165,685  2,877,403 

CHANGE IN NET 
POSITION 

<2,977,380>  <7,861,235> 
 

<1,182,163>  <189,205> 

NET POSITION, 
BEGIN 

<13,545,808>  <5,684,573>  995,930  1,184,595 

NET POSITION, 
END 

<16,523,188>  <13,545,808>  <186,773>  995,390 
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Fund Financial Analysis 

General Fund 

Revenues‐Total  Income  from  operations  for  the  period  of  July  1,  2018  through  June  30,  2019 was 

$13,565,610.    The majority  of  income was  received  in  the  form  of  Per  Pupil  Revenue  allocated  to 

Stargate Charter School from the State of Colorado through the charter authorizer Adams 12 Five Star 

School District. This funding source  increased by 5.87% ($440.06) per student between the 2017/2018 

and 2018/2019 school years.  Stargate receives Mill Levy Override funds from Adams 12 in the amount 

of  $125.96  per  resident  pupil  as  a  component  of  local  revenue.  The  school  received  an  additional 

$630.45 per student from the November 2018 Adams 12 mill  levy override. The District allocates state 

and  federal  IDEA  and  ECEA  funds  to  the  school  for  special  education  per  the  charter  contract.  

Investment income of $108,564 was recognized for the year. Tuition for all day kindergarten and before 

and  after  childcare were  received  in  support  of  the  general  operation  of  the  school.    Food  service 

revenue offsets the cost of the school’s hot lunch program.  

Expenditures‐Total expenditures for the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019 were $12,923,570. 

Salaries were $6,370,144; benefits were $1,979,142; purchased services were $1,77,742; supplies were 

$650,856; rent to the Foundation was $2,165,686. Expenditures increased $1,266,867 from the previous 

year.  This  increase  can  be  attributed  to  increased  staffing  needs  during  expansion  and  increased 

purchased services. 

Net Income‐For the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2018 Stargate Charter School recorded a net 

gain of $641,985, in the General Fund.  This gain will increase the general fund contingency which will be 

maintained  in a manner consistent with  the Board Reserve Strategy. The balance can be available  for 

future year’s expenditure. 

Agency Fund 

Student  fees,  technology  fees,  field  trip  fees, outdoor  education payments  and  fundraising proceeds 

were moved to the general Fund and two Special Revenue Funds in 2018‐2019. As of June 30, 2018, the 

agency  fund had a  cumulative balance of $0.00 available  to  student  groups.   A  total of $80,589 was 

moved from the agency fund to Fund 27‐Special Revenue Fund‐ Fund Raising. An additional $75,000 was 

returned to the Special Revenue Fund‐Fund Raising from the Adams County Open Space Grant proceeds. 

Stargate Foundation 

Revenues‐Total  income  for  the  period  of  July  1,  2018  through  June  30,  2019 was  $2,218,156.  This 

income  is derived  from  rent payments  from  the  school’s General  Fund  in  accordance with  the  lease 

agreement  in  the  amount  of  $2,165,685.    The  Foundation  received  interest  income  in  the  amount 

$52,471 on the deposits held by the trustee. 
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Expenses‐Total expenses  for  the period of  July 1, 2018  through  June 30, 2019 were $2,301,312. The 

interest expense for the year was $1,491,371.  The depreciation expense was $809,941.  

Net Income‐For the year ended June 30, 2019 Stargate Foundation recorded a change in net position of 

<$1,182,163> as expenses exceeded revenues by that amount. Debt  Issuance costs on the 2018 bond 

refunding of $1,099,007 are the primary factor on the decrease in net position. 

Analysis of Budget –General Fund 

The  original  budget  for  Stargate  School was  adopted  in May  of  2018.    There were  several  notable 

additions  to  the  budget.  The  Board  of  Directors  adopted  a  revised  budget  in  January  of  2019  to: 

recognize the additional revenue that would be received from the 2018 Adams 12 Mill Levy Override; 

recognize  increases  in  state  and  federal  grant  funding;  increase  budget  for  salaries,  benefits  and 

purchased services; and finalize the allocation to be spent from the bond fund.  

There were no significant variations between the final revised budget amounts approved by the Stargate 

Charter School Board of Directors and the actual result for the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 

2019. Eagle’s Landing performed at expectation.   

Capital Assets and Debt Administration‐General Fund 

Capital  Assets‐As  of  June  30,  2019,  Stargate  Charter  School  has  $6,188,955  in  capital  assets,  net  of 

depreciation. The majority of the depreciable assets are represented by  the completed  turf  fields and 

the completed of the Performing Arts/Adroit addition. The Performing Arts/Adroit addition was placed 

into service in the August of the 2018‐2019 school year.  

Long‐term debt‐As of June 30, 2019 the school had no long‐term debt. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration‐Foundation   

Capital Assets‐Stargate Foundation’s capital assets as of  June 30, 2019 amount to $36,025,138, net of 

accumulated depreciation. These assets  represent  the buildings and  improvements  to  the  facility.    In 

addition, the Foundation has non depreciable assets of $3,503,069 in land acquisition costs.  

In April 2015 the Colorado Educational and Cultural Facilities Authority issued Revenue Bond Series 2015 

A, B, and C on behalf of Stargate Foundation.   The purpose of the Series 2015 B and C (taxable) bonds 

was to refund the outstanding Series 2006 in the amount of $8,405,000.  Additionally, the Series 2015A 

bonds were  issued  for  the  construction of  a new  secondary  school  facility  (6‐12),  a new  elementary 

facility (K‐5) and construction of a stand‐ alone field house.  Stargate Foundation purchased 43 acres at 

14530 Washington St, Thornton, CO for the development of the project.   Construction was completed 

August, 2016. 
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In  July  2018  the  Colorado  Educational  and  Cultural  Facilities Authority  issued Refunding Bond  Series 

2018 A, B, and C on behalf of Stargate Foundation. The purpose of these bonds was to refund the Series 

2015 A, B and C bonds into a 30 year municipal bond fund issue at favorable long‐term interest rates. 

The 2018 Series bond received a Ba3 investment grade rating from Moody’s Investor Service. The bonds 

were successfully accepted into the Colorado Charter School Moral Obligation Program giving the bonds 

an enhanced Aa3 rating in the market. 

Long‐term Debt ‐As  of  June  30,  2019  Stargate  Foundation  had  outstanding  debt  of  $42,656,726. 

Additional information on capital assets and long‐term debt is provided in Notes 3 and 4 to the financial 

statements. 

Net Pension Liability 

In compliance with GASB 68 and 75, as of June 30, 2019   Stargate  School  shows  a  net  pension  and 

postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability of $20,171,329 on its statement of net position.  This amount 

represents  Stargate’s  proportionate  share  of  the  outstanding  unfunded  pension  liability  and  OPEB 

liability  of  the  Colorado  Public  Employees  Retirement Association.    The  negative  net  position  of  the 

school at year end can be attributed to this liability. 

Additional  information  on  this  calculation  and  defined  benefit  pension  and  OPEB  plan  reporting  is 

provided in Notes 5 and 6 to the financial statements. 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget 

The primary  factor driving  the budget  for  the  school  is  the  future of  the Colorado  state budget  and 

related  impacts on Public School Finance.   Stargate Charter School’s funded enrollment for 2018‐2019 

was  1353  students  in  grades  K‐12  with  a  significant  waiting  list  at  the  lower  grades.  Budgetary 

forecasting for the next five years takes a strategic approach to maintaining educational standards while 

applying  a  conservative  fiscal  approach  to  budgeting.  Stargate  Charter  School  regularly  monitors 

legislative  trends, discussions,  and  legislation  that may  impact  funding  and  adjust  the budget model 

accordingly. Stargate Charter School is confident in its ability to forecast and adjust to potential impacts 

to the school’s primary funding source. 

In  the 2019‐2020  school  year  Stargate  School will  continue  a multi‐year  expansion  into  grades 9‐12. 

Ninth  grade was  added  in  the  2015‐2016  school  year with  one  additional  grade  added  each  of  the 

subsequent school years. Enrollment for the 2019‐2020 school years is projected at 1440 in grades K‐12.  

Enrollment at full expansion is projected at 592 students K‐5, 405 students 6‐8 and 560 students 9‐12 by 

school year 2021‐2022. 
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Requests for Information 

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Stargate Charter School’s finances for 

all  those with an  interest  in  the School. Questions concerning any of  the  information provided  in  this 

report or requests for additional information should be addressed to: 

 

Stargate Charter School 

14530 Washington St 

Thornton, CO 80023 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Basic Financial Statements 
 
 



Assets

Cash and Investments $ 3,031,990      $ -                     $ 3,031,990      
Restricted Cash and Investments -                     2,903,724 2,903,724      
Accounts Receivable 91,482           -                     91,482           
Grants Receivable 16,906           -                     16,906           
Prepaid Expenses 5,345             -                     5,345             
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated -                     3,503,069 3,503,069      
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 6,188,955      36,025,138 42,214,093    

Total Assets 9,334,678      42,431,931    51,766,609    

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Loss on Refunding of Debt -                     190,347 190,347         

Pensions, Net of Accumulated Amortization 8,914,133      -                     8,914,133      
OPEB, Net of Accumulated Amortization 127,690         -                     127,690         

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 9,041,823      190,347         9,232,170      

Liabilities

Accounts Payable 152,874         -                     152,874         
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 867,280         -                     867,280         
Accrued Interest Payable -                     152,325         152,325         
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due Within One Year -                     380,000         380,000         
Due in More Than One Year 32,897           42,276,726 42,309,623    
Net Pension Liability 19,211,817    -                     19,211,817    
Net OPEB Liability 959,512         -                     959,512         

Total Liabilities 21,224,380    42,809,051    64,033,431    

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Pensions, Net of Accumulated Amortization 13,673,848    -                     13,673,848    
OPEB, Net of Accumulated Amortization 1,461             -                     1,461             

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 13,675,309    -                     13,675,309    

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 6,188,955      (3,128,519)     3,060,436      
Restricted for:
Debt Service -                     2,751,399      2,751,399      
Capital Projects -                     -                     -                     
Special Education 200,000         -                     200,000         
Emergencies 350,000         -                     350,000         

Unrestricted (23,262,143)   190,347         (23,071,796)   

Total Net Position $ (16,523,188)   $ (186,773)        $ (16,709,961)   

Stargate Charter School

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019

Activities Activities Total

Business-TypeGovernmental

(A Component Unit of Adams County School District No. 12)

See Notes to Financial Statements.  3



Primary Government

Governmental Activities
Instruction $ 9,022,128 $ 757,493 $ 294,119 $ (7,970,516)     $ -                     $ (7,970,516)     
Supporting Services 5,436,250 14,659 -                     (5,421,591)     -                     (5,421,591)     

Total Governmental Activities 14,458,378    772,152         294,119         (13,392,107)   -                     (13,392,107)   

Business-Type Activities
Foundation 2,301,312 -                     -                     -                     (2,301,312)     (2,301,312)     

Total Primary Government $ 16,759,690    $ 772,152         $ 294,119         (13,392,107)   (2,301,312)     (15,693,419)   

General Revenues

Per Pupil Revenue 10,746,829    -                     10,746,829    
District Mill Levy 131,084         -                     131,084         
Capital Construction 405,826         -                     405,826         
Investment Income 108,564         52,471           161,035         
Proceeds from sale of assets 3,600 -                     3,600             
Bond Issuance Costs -                     (1,099,007)     (1,099,007)     
Other 964,509         -                     964,509         

Transfers (1,945,685)     2,165,685      220,000         

   Total General Revenues and Transfers 10,414,727    1,119,149      11,533,876    

Change in Net Position (2,977,380)     (1,182,163)     (4,159,543)     

Net Position, Beginning of year (13,545,808)   995,390         (12,550,418)   

Net Position, End of year $ (16,523,188)   $ (186,773)        $ (16,709,961)   

(A Component Unit of Adams County School District No. 12)
Stargate Charter School

Statement of Activities

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Activities Activities Total
Business-TypeGovernmental

Change in Net Position
Net (Expense) Revenue and

Charges for

Program Revenues

Grants and
Operating

See Notes to Financial Statements.  4



Assets

Cash and Investments $ 3,031,990      $ -                     $ 3,031,990      
Accounts Receivable 91,482           -                     91,482           
Grants Receivable 16,906           -                     16,906           
Prepaid Expenditures 5,345             -                     5,345             

Total Assets $ 3,145,723      $ -                     $ 3,145,723      

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 152,874         $ -                     $ 152,874         
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 867,280         -                     867,280         

Total Liabilities 1,020,154      -                     1,020,154      

Fund Balance
Nonspendable Prepaid Expenditures 5,345             -                     5,345             
Restricted for:
Capital Projects -                     -                     -                     
Special Education 200,000         -                     200,000         
Emergencies 350,000         -                     350,000         

Unrestricted, Unassigned 1,570,224      -                     1,570,224      

Total Fund Balance 2,125,569      -                     2,125,569      

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 3,145,723      $ -                     $ 3,145,723      

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the
Statement of Net Position are Different Because:

Total Fund Balance of the Governmental Funds $ 2,125,569      

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, 
therefore, are not reported in governmental funds. 6,188,955      

Long-term liabilities and related items are not due and payable in the current
year and, therefore, are not reported in governmental funds.
Compensated absences payable (32,897)          
Net pension liability (19,211,817)   
Pension-related deferred outflows of resources 8,914,133      
Pension-related deferred inflows of resources (13,673,848)   
Net OPEB liability (959,512)        
OPEB-related deferred outflows of resources 127,690         
OPEB-related deferred inflows of resources (1,461)            

Total Net Position of Governmental Activities $ (16,523,188)   

Building Total

Stargate Charter School
(A Component Unit of Adams County School District No. 12)

Balance Sheet
Governmental Fund

June 30, 2019

General

See Notes to Financial Statements.  5



Revenues

Local Sources
Per Pupil Revenue $ 10,746,829    $ -                     $ 10,746,829    
District Mill Levy 131,084         -                     131,084         
Tuition and Fees 757,493         -                     757,493         
Food Service Fees 11,108           -                     11,108           
Rental Income 3,551             -                     3,551             
Investment Income 108,509         55                  108,564         
Miscellaneous 964,509         -                     964,509         

State Sources
Capital Construction 405,826         -                     405,826         
Grants 340,812         -                     340,812         

Federal Sources
Grants 95,834           -                     95,834           

Total Revenues 13,565,555    55                  13,565,610    

Expenditures

Instruction 6,592,033      -                     6,592,033      
Supporting Services 6,331,537      4,998             6,336,535      
Capital Outlay -                     215,361         215,361         

Total Expenditures 12,923,570    220,359         13,143,929    

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 641,985         (220,304)        421,681         

Transfers
Proceeds from sales of assets 3,600             -                     3,600             
Transfer In 345,000         -                     345,000         

Transfer Out -                     (125,000)        (125,000)        

Net Change in Fund Balance 990,585         (345,304)        645,281         

Fund Balance, Beginning of year 1,134,984      345,304         1,480,288      

Fund Balance, End of year $ 2,125,569      $ -                     $ 2,125,569      

Building TotalGeneral

Stargate Charter School
(A Component Unit of Adams County School District No. 12)

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

See Notes to Financial Statements.  6



Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the
Statement of Activities are Different Because:

Net Change in Fund Balance of the Governmental Funds $ 645,281         

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as
depreciation expense.
Capital outlay 172,919         
Depreciation expense (283,120)        

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
This includes changes in the following.
Compensated absences (13,370)          
Net pension liability 18,988,063    
Pension-related deferred outflows of resources (10,178,332)   
Pension-related deferred inflows of resources (12,111,805)   
Net OPEB liability (87,188)          
OPEB-related deferred outflows of resources (122,961)        
OPEB-related deferred inflows of resources 13,133           

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ (2,977,380)     

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Stargate Charter School

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
of the Governmental Fund to the Statement of Activities

(A Component Unit of Adams County School District No. 12)

See Notes to Financial Statements.  7



Assets

Current Assets
Cash and Investments $ 2,903,724      

Total Current Assets 2,903,724      

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 3,503,069      
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 36,025,138    

Total Noncurrent Assets 39,528,207    

Total Assets 42,431,931    

Deferred Outflow of Resources

Deferred Loss on Refunding 190,347

Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accrued Interest Payable 152,325         
Loan Payable, Current Portion 380,000         

Total Current Liabilities 532,325         

Noncurrent Liabilities
Loan Payable 42,276,726    

Total Liabilities 42,809,051    

Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets (3,128,519)     
Restricted for Debt Service 2,941,746

Total Net Position $ (186,773)        

Foundation

June 30, 2019

Stargate Charter School

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fund

(A Component Unit of Adams County School District No. 12)

See Notes to Financial Statements.  8



Operating Revenues

Charges for Services $ 2,165,685      

Total Operating Revenues 2,165,685      

Operating Expenses

Depreciation 809,941         
Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,491,371      

Total Operating Expenses 2,301,312      

Net Operating Income (Loss) (135,627)        

Nonoperating Revenues
Debt Issuance Cost (1,099,007)     

Investment Income 52,471           

Total Nonoperating Revenues (1,046,536)     

Change in Net Position (1,182,163)     

Net Position, Beginning of year 995,390         

Net Position, End of year $ (186,773)        

Foundation

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Stargate Charter School

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Fund

(A Component Unit of Adams County School District No. 12)

See Notes to Financial Statements.  9



Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Lease Payments Received $ 2,165,685      
Loan Principal Paid (195,000)        
Loan Interest and Fees Paid (1,596,695)     

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 373,990         

Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Payments from escrow (2,223,452)     
Payments to the School 2,443,900      

Bond Issuance Costs 33,363           
253,811         

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Investment Income Received 52,471           

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 680,272         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of year 2,223,452      

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of year $ 2,903,724      

Reconciliation of Net Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Net Operating Income (Loss) $ (135,627)        
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Depreciation Expense 809,941         
Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Accrued Interest Payable (33,885)          
Loan Payable (266,439)        

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 373,990         

Non-Cash Transactions

Proceeds from Bond Issuance $ 40,479,265    
Payment of Bond Debt (39,442,070)   

Payment of Bond Issuance Cost $ (1,037,195)     

Foundation

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Stargate Charter School

Statement of Cash Flows
(A Component Unit of Adams County School District No. 12)

Proprietary Fund
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

See Notes to Financial Statements.  10



Assets

Cash $ -                     
Accounts Receivable -                     

   Total Assets $ -                     

Liabilities

Accounts Payable $ -                     
Due to Student Groups -                     

   Total Liabilities $ -                     

Activity

Agency Fund

Stargate Charter School
(A Component Unit of Adams County School District No. 12)

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

June 30, 2019

Student

See Notes to Financial Statements.  11
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Nature of Operations 
 
Stargate Charter School (the School) was organized pursuant to the Colorado Charter Schools 
Act to form and operate a charter school within Adams County School District No. 12 (the District).  
The School began operations in the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1994.  The School is a non-
profit organization as defined by Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
 
The accounting policies of the School conform to generally accepted accounting principles as 
applicable to governmental entities.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is 
the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial 
reporting principles.  Following is a summary of the School’s more significant policies.  
 
Reporting Entity 
 
The financial reporting entity consists of the School, organizations for which the School is 
financially accountable, and organizations that raise and hold economic resources for the direct 
benefit of the School.  All funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments and offices 
that are not legally separate are part of the School.  Legally separate organizations for which the 
School is financially accountable are considered part of the reporting entity.  Financial 
accountability exists if the School appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board 
and is able to impose its will on the organization, or if the organization has the potential to provide 
benefits to, or impose financial burdens on, the School.  
 
Based upon the application of this criteria, the School includes the Stargate Foundation (the 
Foundation), a Colorado non-profit organization, within its reporting entity.  The Foundation has 
a separate governing board but was organized for the sole purpose of financing and constructing 
the School’s facilities.  The Foundation is blended into the School’s financial statements as an 
enterprise fund and does not issue separate financial statements.  
 
The School is a component unit of the District.  The School’s charter is authorized by the District 
and the majority of the School’s funding is provided by the District.  
 
Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement 
of activities) report information on all nonfiduciary activities of the School.  For the most part, the 
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.  Exceptions to this general 
rule are charges for interfund services that are reasonably equivalent to the services provided.  
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, 
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees 
and charges for support.  
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of the given 
function or segment are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment.  Program revenues include 1) charges to students 
or others who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a 
given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Unrestricted revenues 
not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.  
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program 
revenues.  
 
Separate financial statements are provided for the governmental funds, the proprietary fund, and 
the fiduciary fund, even though the latter is excluded from the School’s government-wide financial 
statements.  Major individual governmental and proprietary funds are reported as separate 
columns in the fund financial statements.  
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as is the proprietary fund in the fund 
financial statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been 
met.  
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available.  Available means collected within the current 
year or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current year, not to exceed 60 days.  
Intergovernmental revenues, grants, and interest associated with the current year are considered 
to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current year.  All 
other revenues are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the 
School.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to 
compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due.  
 
The fiduciary fund utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(Continued) 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and 
delivering goods in connection with ongoing operations.  Operating expenses for proprietary 
funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital 
assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating 
revenues and expenses.  
 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for a specific use, it is the School’s 
policy to use restricted resources first, and the unrestricted resources as they are needed.  
 
The School reports the following major governmental and proprietary funds:  

 
General Fund - This fund is the general operating fund of the School.  It is used to account 
for all financial activities except those accounted for in another fund. 
 
Building Fund - This fund is used to account for District bond proceeds contributed to the 
School and restricted for capital improvements. 
 
Foundation - This fund is used to account for the financial activities of the Foundation, which 
are primarily related to capital assets and the related debt service.  
 

Additionally, the School reports the following fund type:  
 
The Agency Fund is used to account for student fees collected for various activities.  The 
School holds all resources in a purely custodial capacity.  

 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position/Fund Balance 
 
Cash Equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include 
investments with original maturities of three months or less.  
 
Receivables - All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are 
reduced by the estimated portion that is expected to be uncollectible.  
 
Prepaid Expenses - Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future years and are 
reported as prepaid expenses.  
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued) 
 
Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property and equipment, are reported in the 
government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund in the fund financial statements.  
Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or more and an 
estimated useful life in excess of one year.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or 
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at the 
acquisition value on the date of donation.  
 
Depreciation of exhaustible capital assets is charged as an expense against operations, and 
accumulated depreciation is reported in the statement of net position in the government-wide 
financial statements and the proprietary fund in the fund financial statements.  Capital assets are 
depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives. 
 
Land Improvements  7 years
Buildings  10 - 50 years
Building Improvements  10 - 20 years
Equipment  3 - 10 years
 
Accrued Salaries and Benefits - Salaries and benefits of certain contractually employed personnel 
are paid over a twelve-month period from September to August, but are earned during a school 
year of approximately nine to ten months.  The salaries and benefits earned, but unpaid, are 
reported as a liability of the General Fund.  
 
Compensated Absences - School employees are entitled to certain compensated absences 
based on their length of employment and classification.  Except for vacation leave, compensated 
absences do not vest or accumulate and are recorded as expenditures when used.  Upon 
separation or retirement, employees are paid for up to 40 days of accrued vacation leave at their 
current rate of pay.  A long-term liability has been reported in the government-wide financial 
statements for the accrued vacation leave.  
 
Long-Term Debt - In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund in the 
fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as 
liabilities.  Debt premiums, discounts, and accounting losses resulting from debt refunding’s are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the debt using the straight-line method.  In the 
governmental fund financial statements, the face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing 
sources while discounts are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs are reported as 
current expenses or expenditures. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued) 
 
Pensions - The School participates in the School Division Trust Fund (SDTF), a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public Employees’ 
Retirement Association of Colorado (PERA).  The net pension liability, deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, pension expense, information 
about the fiduciary net position, and additions to and deductions from the SDTF’s fiduciary net 
position have been determined using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting, the same basis of accounting used by the SDTF.  For this purpose, 
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Employer contributions are recognized when the 
compensation is payable to the employees. 
 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB) - The School participates in the Health 
Care Trust Fund (HCTF), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit postemployment 
healthcare plan administered by the Public Employees’ Retirement Association of Colorado 
(PERA).  The net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB, OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position, and additions to 
and deductions from the HCTF’s fiduciary net position have been determined using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, the same basis of accounting 
used by the HCTF.  For this purpose, the HCTF recognizes benefit payments when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  Employer contributions are recognized when the 
compensation is payable to the employees.  
 
Net Position/Fund Balance - In the government-wide and fund financial statements, net position 
and fund balance are restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are externally 
imposed.  The Board of Directors is authorized to establish a fund balance commitment through 
passage of a resolution, and may assign fund balances to a specific purpose through an informal 
action.  
 
The School has not established a formal policy for its use of restricted and unrestricted fund 
balances.  However, if both restricted and unrestricted fund balances are available for a specific 
purpose, the School uses restricted fund balance first, followed by committed, assigned, and 
unassigned balances. 
 
Risk Management 
 
The School is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction 
of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The School carries commercial insurance 
for these risks of loss.  
 
Subsequent Events 
 
We have evaluated subsequent events through October 28, 2019, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
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Note 2: Deposits and Investments 
 
At June 30, 2019, the School and the Foundation had the following cash and investments:  
 

Cash and investments are reported in the financial statements as follows:  
 

The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires all local government entities to 
deposit cash in eligible public depositories.  Eligibility is determined by State regulations.  
Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must be collateralized by eligible 
collateral as determined by the PDPA.  The PDPA allows the financial institution to create a 
single collateral pool for all public funds held.  The pool is to be maintained by another institution 
or held in trust for all uninsured public deposits as a group.  The market value of the collateral 
must be at least equal to 102% of the uninsured deposits.  At June 30, 2019, the School had 
bank deposits of $498,734 collateralized with securities held by the financial institution’s agent 
but not in the School’s name. 
 
Investments 
 
The School is required to comply with State statutes which specify investment instruments 
meeting defined rating, maturity and concentration risk criteria in which local governments may 
invest, which include the following.  State statutes do not address custodial risk.   
 

 Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. Agency securities 
 Certain international agency securities 
 General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities 
 Bankers’ acceptances of certain banks 
 Commercial paper 
 Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities 
 Certain money market funds 
 Guaranteed investment contracts 
 Local government investment pools 

 
 

Deposits $ 685,357          
Investments 5,250,357       

Total $ 5,935,714       

Cash and Investments $ 3,031,990       
Restricted Cash and Investments 2,903,724       

Total $ 5,935,714       
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Note 2: Deposits and Investments (Continued) 
 
Investments (Continued) 
 
Fair Value Measurements - At June 30, 2019, the School’s investment in the local government 
investment pool and the Foundation’s investment in a money market fund were measured at the 
net asset value per share. 
 
Interest Rate Risk - State statutes generally limit the maturity of investment securities to five years 
from the date of purchase, unless the governing board authorizes the investment for a period in 
excess of five years. 
 
Credit Risk - State statutes limit investments in money market funds to those that maintain a 
constant share price, with a maximum remaining maturity in accordance with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission’s Rule 2a-7, and either have assets of one billion dollars or the highest 
rating issued by one or more nationally recognized statistical rating organizations.  At June 30, 
2019, the Foundation’s investment of $2,903,724 in the Fidelity Government Portfolio Money 
Market Fund was rated AAAm by Standard and Poor’s.  
 
Concentration of Credit Risk - State statutes do not limit the amount the School may invest in a 
single issuer of investment securities, except for corporate securities.  
 
Local Government Investment Pool - At June 30, 2019, the School had $2,006,325 invested in 
the Colorado Local Government Liquid Asset Trust (Colotrust), an investment vehicle established 
for local government entities in Colorado to pool surplus funds for investment purposes.  The 
Colorado Division of Securities administers and enforces the requirements of creating and 
operating Colotrust.  Colotrust operates in conformity with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission’s Rule 2a-7, with each share valued at $1.  Colotrust is rated AAAm by Standard 
and Poor’s.  Investments of Colotrust are limited to those allowed by State statutes.  A 
designated custodial bank provides safekeeping and depository services in connection with the 
direct investment and withdrawal functions.  The custodian’s internal records identify the 
investments owned by the participating governments. 
 
Restricted Cash and Investments 
 
At June 30, 2019, the Foundation had cash and investments of $2,903,724 restricted for future 
debt service.  
 



Stargate Charter School 
(A Component Unit of Adams County School District No. 12) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2019 

 
 

19 

Note 3: Capital Assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, is summarized below.  
 

Depreciation expense of the governmental activities was charged to the supporting services 
program. 
 
 
Note 4: Long-Term Debt 
 
Following is a summary of long-term debt transactions for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Construction in Progress $ 5,172,033       $ 107,230          $ (5,279,263)      $ -                      

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Land Improvements 1,185,027       -                      -                      1,185,027       
Buildings and Improvements -                      5,279,263       -                      5,279,263       
Equipment 125,355          65,689            -                      191,044          

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 1,310,382       5,344,952       -                      6,655,334       

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Land Improvements (169,290)         (169,290)         -                      (338,580)         
Buildings and Improvements -                      (86,953)           (86,953)           
Equipment (13,969)           (26,877)           -                      (40,846)           

Total Accumulated Depreciation (183,259)         (283,120)         -                      (466,379)         

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 1,127,123       5,061,832       -                      6,188,955       

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 6,299,156       $ 5,169,062       $ (5,279,263)      $ 6,188,955       

6/30/19
Balance

6/30/18
Balance

Additions Deletions

Governmental Activities
Compensated Absences $ 19,527            $ 13,370            $ -                      $ 32,897            $ -                      

Business-Type Activities
2015 CECFA Bond A $ 41,380,000     $ -                      $ (41,380,000)    $ -                      $ -                      
2018 CECFA Bond A -                      40,585,000     40,585,000     380,000          
2018 CECFA Bond B -                      195,000          (195,000)         -                      -                      
2018 CECFA Bond Premium -                      2,143,165       (71,439)           2,071,726       -                      

2015 Building Loan $ 41,380,000     $ 42,923,165     $ (41,646,439)    $ 42,656,726     $ 380,000          

Balance Balance
6/30/18 Additions Payments 6/30/19

Due Within
One Year
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Note 4: Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
Compensated absences of the governmental activities are expected to be liquidated with 
revenues of the General Fund.  
 
Building Loan 
 
In April, 2015, the Colorado Educational and Cultural Facilities Authority (CECFA) issued 
$42,010,000 Charter School Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2015A.  Bond proceeds were 
loaned to the Foundation to acquire land and construct a new school campus consisting of 
elementary and secondary school buildings.  The School is obligated under a lease agreement 
to make monthly lease payments to the Foundation for using the facilities.  The Foundation is 
required to make equal loan payments to the trustee, for payment of the bonds.  Interest accrues 
on the bonds at 5.4% per annum, and is payable semi-annually on June 1 and December 1.  
Principal payments are due annually on December 1, with a balloon payment due on December 
1, 2020.  
 
On June 27, 2018, CECFA issued $40,780,000 Charter School Refunding Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2018A and Taxable Series 2018B.  Proceeds were used to refund the outstanding Series 
2015A Bonds.  The School is obligated under a lease agreement to make monthly lease 
payments to the Corporation for using the facilities.  The Corporation is required to make equal 
loan payments to the Trustee, for payment of the bonds.  Interest accrues on the bonds at rates 
ranging from 4.0% to 5.0% on the Series A Bonds and from 2.33% to 4.08% on the Taxable 
Series B bonds, and is payable semi-annually on December 1 and June 1.  Principal payments 
are due annually on December 1, from 2018 through 2048. 
 

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Land $ 3,503,069       $ -                      $ -                      $ 3,503,069       

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Buildings and Improvements 37,928,709     -                      -                      37,928,709     
Equipment 372,193          -                      -                      372,193          

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 38,300,902     -                      -                      38,300,902     

Less Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings and Improvements (1,433,878)      (772,721)         -                      (2,206,599)      
Equipment (31,945)           (37,220)           -                      (69,165)           

Total Accumulated Depreciation (1,465,823)      (809,941)         -                      (2,275,764)      

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 36,835,079     (809,941)         -                      36,025,138     

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 40,338,148     $ (809,941)         $ -                      $ 39,528,207     

Balance Balance
6/30/18 Additions Deletions 6/30/19
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Note 4: Long-Term Debt (Continued) 
 
Building Loan (Continued) 
 
Proceeds of the Series 2018A and 2018B bonds in the amount of $41,665,522 were deposited in 
an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to call and pay the Series 2015A Bonds.  The refunding 
resulted in an accounting loss of $118,908 but provided an economic gain (difference between 
the present value of the old and new debt service payments) of approximately $9,683,600. 
 
Future debt service requirements are as follows: 
 

 
Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plan 
 
General Information 
 
Plan Description - The School contributes to the School Division Trust Fund (SDTF), a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by (PERA).  All employees 
of the School participate in the SDTF.  Plan benefits are specified in Title 24, Article 51 of the 
Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.), administrative rules set forth at 8 C.C.R. 1502-1, and 
applicable provisions of the federal Internal Revenue Code.  Colorado State law provisions may 
be amended from time to time by the Colorado General Assembly.  PERA issues a publicly 
available financial report (CAFR) that includes information on the SDTF that may be obtained at 
www.copera.org/investments/pera-financial-reports. 
 

Year Ended June 30,
2020 $ 380,000          $ 1,818,400       $ 2,198,400       
2021 650,000          1,792,650       2,442,650       
2022 680,000          1,759,400       2,439,400       
2023 715,000          1,724,525       2,439,525       
2024 755,000          1,687,775       2,442,775       
2025 - 2029 4,390,000       7,818,000       12,208,000     
2030 - 2034 5,640,000       6,570,000       12,210,000     
2035 - 2039 7,240,000       5,656,000       12,896,000     
2040 - 2044 -                  4,027,000       4,027,000       
2045 - 2049 20,135,000     3,624,300       23,759,300     

Total $ 40,585,000     $ 36,478,050     $ 77,063,050     

Interest TotalPrincipal
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Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
General Information (Continued) 
 
Benefits Provided - The SDTF provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to plan 
participants or their beneficiaries.  Retirement benefits are determined by the amount of service 
credit earned or purchased, highest average salary, the benefit structure under which the member 
retires, the benefit option selected at retirement, and age at retirement.  The lifetime retirement 
benefit is the greater of the a) highest average salary over three years multiplied by 2.5% and 
then multiplied by years of service credit, or b) the value of the participant’s contribution account 
plus an equal match on eligible amounts as of the retirement date, annualized into a monthly 
amount based on life expectancy and other actuarial factors.  In no case can the benefit amount 
exceed the highest average salary, or the amount allowed by applicable federal regulations. 
 
Retirees may elect to withdraw their contributions upon termination of employment with all PERA 
employers; waiving rights to any lifetime retirement benefits earned.  If eligible, the member may 
receive a match of either 50 percent or 100 percent on eligible amounts depending on when 
contributions were remitted to PERA, the date employment was terminated, whether 5 years of 
service credit has been obtained and the benefit structure under which contributions were made. 
 
As of December 31, 2018, retirees who elect to receive a lifetime retirement benefit are generally 
eligible to receive post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs) in certain years, referred to 
as annual increases in the C.R.S. Pursuant to SB 18-200, there are no annual increases (AI) for 
2018 and 2019 for all benefit recipients.  Thereafter, retirees under the PERA benefit structure 
who began eligible employment before January 1, 2007 and all benefit recipients of the DPS 
benefit structure will receive an annual increase, unless PERA has a negative investment year, 
in which case the annual increase for the next three years is the lesser of 1.5% or the average 
consumer price index for the prior calendar year, not to exceed 10 percent of PERA’s Annual 
Increase Reserve (AIR) for the SDTF.  The automatic adjustment provision may raise or lower 
the aforementioned AI for a given year by up to one-quarter of 1 percent based on the parameters 
specified C.R.S. § 24-51-413. 
 
Disability benefits are available for eligible plan participants once they reach five years of earned 
service credit and are determined to meet the definition of a disability.  The disability benefit 
amount is based on the lifetime retirement benefit formula described previously, considering a 
minimum of twenty years of service credit, if deemed disabled.  
 
Survivor benefits are determined by several factors, which include the amount of earned service 
credit, highest average salary of the deceased, the benefit structure in place under which service 
credit was obtained, and the qualified survivor who will receive the benefits.  
 
Contributions - The School, eligible employees and the State are required to contribute to the 
SDTF at a rate set by Colorado statute.  These contribution requirements are established under 
C.R.S. § 24-51-401, et seq. and § 24-51-413.  The contribution rate for eligible employees is 8% 
of covered salaries during the period of July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019.  The School’s 
contribution rate for calendar years 2019 and 2018 was 20.15% of covered salaries, respectively.  
However, a portion of the School’s contribution (1.02% of covered salaries) is allocated to the 
Health Care Trust Fund (See Note 6). 
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Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
General Information (Continued) 
 
Employer contributions are recognized by the SDTF in the period in which the compensation 
becomes payable to the member and the School is statutorily committed to pay the contributions 
to the SDTF.  The School’s contributions to the SDTF for the year ended June 30, 2019, were 
$1,300,587, equal to the required contributions.  
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 
At June 30, 2019, the School reported a net pension liability of $19,211,817, representing its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability that reflected a reduction for support from the State 
as a nonemployer contributing entity.  The amount recognized by the School as its proportionate 
share of the net pension liability, the related support from the State as a nonemployer contributing 
entity, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the School were 
as follows: 

The net pension liability was measured at December 31, 2018, and the total pension liability used 
to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 
2017.  Standard update procedures were used to roll forward the total pension liability to 
December 31, 2018.  
 
The School’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the School’s contributions to the 
SDTF for the calendar year ended December 31, 2018, relative to the contributions of all 
participating employers.  At December 31, 2018, the School’s proportion was 0.1084981011%, 
which was a decrease of 0.00096344842% from its proportion measured at December 31, 2017.  
 
The Colorado General Assembly passed significant pension reform through Senate Bill (SB) 18-
200: Concerning Modifications to the Public Employees’ Retirement Association Hybrid Defined 
Benefit Plan Necessary to Eliminate with a High Probability the Unfunded Liability of the Plan 
Within the Next Thirty Years.  The bill was signed into law by Governor Hickenlooper on June 4, 
2018.  A brief description of some of the major changes to plan provisions required by SB 18-
200 for the SDTF are listed below.  A full copy of the bill can be found online at 
www.leg.colorado.gov. 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 21,838,775     
The State's proportionate share of net pension liability as a
nonemployer contributing entity associated with the School (2,626,958)      

School Proportionate share of net pension liability $ 19,211,817     
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Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 
 

 Increases employer contribution rates for the SDTF by 0.25 percent on July 1, 2019. 
 Increases employee contribution rates for the SDTF by a total of 2 percent (to be phased 

in over a period of 3 years starting on July 1, 2019).  
 As specified in C.R.S. § 24-51-413, the State is required to contribute $225 million each 

year to PERA starting on July 1, 2018.  A portion of the direct distribution payment is 
allocated to the SDTF based on the proportionate amount of annual payroll of the SDTF 
to the total annual payroll of the SDTF, State Division Trust Fund, Judicial Division Trust 
Fund, and Denver Public Schools Division Trust Fund.  A portion of the direct distribution 
allocated to the SDTF is considered a nonemployer contribution for financial reporting 
purposes. 

 Modifies the retirement benefits, including temporarily suspending and reducing the 
annual increase for all current and future retirees, increases the highest average salary 
for employees with less than five years of service credit on December 31, 2019 and raises 
the retirement age for new employees.  

 Member contributions, employer contributions, the direct distribution from the State, and 
the annual increases will be adjusted based on certain statutory parameters beginning 
July 1, 2020, and then each year thereafter, to help keep PERA on path to full funding in 
30 years. 

 
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the direct distribution for the SDTF was $126,505,000. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the School recognized pension expense of $1,717.875 which 
included $156,023 of support from the state as a nonemployer contributing entity.  At June 30, 
2019, the School reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources:  
 

 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 651,683          $ -                      
Changes of assumptions and other inputs 3,585,968       11,947,683     
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments 1,047,163       -                      

Changes in proportion 2,821,100       1,726,165       
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 808,219          -                      

Total $ 8,914,133       $ 13,673,848     

Resources Resources
Outflows of Inflows of

DeferredDeferred
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Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 
 
School contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $656,348 will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent fiscal year.  Other amounts reported as 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recognized as pension expense as follows:  
 

Actuarial Assumptions - The actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2017, determined the total 
pension liability using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs.   
 

 
Healthy mortality assumptions for active members were based on the RP-2014 White Collar 
Employee Mortality Table, a table specifically developed for actively working people.  To allow 
for an appropriate margin of improved mortality prospectively, the mortality rates incorporate a 70 
percent factor applied to male rates and a 55 percent factor applied to female rates.  
 
Healthy, post-retirement mortality assumptions were based on the RP-2014 White Collar Healthy 
Annuitant Mortality Table, with certain adjustments, adjusted as follows: 
 

Year Ended June 30,
2020 $ 623,857          
2021 (3,743,821)      
2022 (3,020,791)      
2023 572,821          

Total $ (5,567,934)      

Price inflation 2.4%

Real wage growth 1.1%
Wage inflation 3.5%
Salary increases, including wage inflation 3.5% - 9.7%
Long-term investment rate of return, net of plan
investment expenses, including price inflation 7.25%

Discount rate 1 4.78%
Post-retirement benefit increases:
Hired prior to 1/1/2007 0% through 2019 and 

1.5% compounded annually thereafter
Hired after 12/31/2006 ad hoc

(1)The discount rate reflected in the roll-forward calculation of the total pension liability to the measurement date was 4.78%.
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Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 
 

 Males: Mortality improvement projected to 2018 using the MP-2015 projection scale, a 93 
percent factor applied to rates for ages less than 80, a 113 percent factor applied to rates 
for ages 80 and above, and further adjustments for credibility. 

 Females: Mortality improvement projected to 2020 using the MP-2015 projection scale, a 
68 percent factor applied to rates for ages less than 80, a 106 percent factor applied to 
rates for ages 80 and above, and further adjustments for credibility. 

 
For disabled retirees, the mortality assumption was based on 90 percent of the RP-2014 Disabled 
Retiree Mortality Table. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2016, valuations were based on the results 
of the 2016 experience analysis for the periods January 1, 2012, through December 31, 2015, as 
well as, the October 28, 2016, actuarial assumptions workshop and were adopted by the PERA 
Board during the November 18, 2016, Board meeting.  The significant changes affecting the plan 
included decreasing the investment rate of return assumption from 7.5% per year, compounded 
annually, net of investment expenses, to 7.25%, and updating mortality assumptions based on 
RP-2014 mortality tables.   
 
The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of regular experience studies 
prepared every four or five years for PERA.  Recently, this assumption has been reviewed more 
frequently.  The most recent analyses were outlined in presentations to PERA’s Board on 
October 28, 2016.  
 
Several factors were considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return assumption for the 
SDTF, including long-term historical data, estimates inherent in current market data, and a log-
normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected return, net of investment expense and inflation) were developed for each major asset 
class.  These ranges were combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and 
then adding expected inflation.  
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Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 
 
As of the most recent adoption of the long-term expected rate of return by the PERA Board, the 
target asset allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset 
class, as follows:  

In setting the long-term expected rate of return, projections employed to model future returns 
provide a range of expected long-term returns that, including expected inflation, ultimately support 
a long-term expected rate of return assumption of 7.25%. 
 
Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%.  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate applied the actuarial cost method 
and assumptions shown above.  In addition, the following methods and assumptions were used 
in the projection of cash flows:  
 

 Total covered payroll for the initial projection year consists of the covered payroll of the 
active membership present on the valuation date and the covered payroll of future plan 
members assumed to be hired during the year.  In subsequent projection years, total 
covered payroll was assumed to increase annually at a rate of 3.50%.  

 Employee contributions were assumed to be made at the member contribution rates in 
effect for each year, including the scheduled increases in SB 18-200.  Employee 
contributions for future plan members were used to reduce the estimated amount of total 
service costs for future plan members.  

Asset Class
U.S. Equity - Large Cap 21.20% 4.30%
U.S. Equity - Small Cap 7.42% 4.80%
Non U.S. Equity - Developed 18.55% 5.20%
Non U.S. Equity - Emerging 5.83% 5.40%
Core Fixed Income 19.32% 1.20%
High Yield 1.38% 4.30%
Non U.S. Fixed Income - Developed 1.84% 0.60%
Emerging Market Debt 0.46% 3.90%
Core Real Estate 8.50% 4.90%
Opportunity Fund 6.00% 3.80%
Private Equity 8.50% 6.60%
Cash 1.00% 0.20%

Total 100.00%

Allocation
Target

Rate of Return
Geometric Real

30 Year
Expected
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Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 
 

 Employer contributions were assumed to be made at rates equal to the fixed statutory 
rates specified in law for each year, including the scheduled increase in SB 18-200.  
Employer contributions also include the current and estimated future AED and SAED, until 
the actuarial value funding ratio reaches 103%, at which point, the AED and SAED will 
each drop 0.50% every year until they are zero.  Additionally, estimated employer 
contributions included reductions for the funding of the AIR and retiree health care 
benefits.  For future plan members, employer contributions were further reduced by the 
estimated amount of total service costs for future plan members not financed by their 
member contributions. 

 As specified in law, the State will provide an annual direct distribution of $225 million 
(actual dollars), commencing July 1, 2018, that is proportioned between the State, School, 
Judicial, and DPS Division Trust Funds based upon the covered payroll of each Division.  
The annual direct distribution ceases when all Division Trust Funds are fully funded. 

 Employer contributions and the amount of total service costs for future plan members were 
based upon a process to estimate future actuarially determined contributions assuming 
an analogous future plan member growth rate.  

 The AIR balance was excluded from the initial fiduciary net position, as, per statute, AIR 
amounts cannot be used to pay benefits until transferred to either the retirement benefits 
reserve or the survivor benefits reserve, as appropriate.  AIR transfers to the fiduciary net 
position and the subsequent AIR benefit payments were estimated and included in the 
projections. 

 Benefit payments and contributions were assumed to be made at the middle of the year.  
 
Based on the above assumptions and methods, the projection test indicates the SDTF’s fiduciary 
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current 
members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return of 7.25 percent on pension plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability.  The discount determination does not use the municipal bond rate, and 
therefore, the discount rate is 7.25 percent. 
 
As of the prior measurement date, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments of 
7.25 percent and the municipal bond index rate of 3.43 percent were used in the discount rate 
determination resulting in a discount rate of 4.78 percent, 2.47 percent lower compared to the 
current measurement date.  
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Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued) 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (Continued) 
 
Sensitivity of the School’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the 
Discount Rate - The following presents the School’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the School’s proportionate share of 
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage 
point lower (6.25%) or one percentage point higher (8.25%) than the current rate, as follows:  
 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the SDTF’s fiduciary net position 
is available in PERA’s separately issued financial report, which may be obtained at 
www.copera.org/investments/pera-financial-reports. 
 
 
Note 6: Postemployment Healthcare Benefits 
 
General Information 
 
Plan Description - All employees of the School are eligible to receive postemployment benefits 
other than pensions (OPEB) through the Health Care Trust Fund (HCTF), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan administered by the Public Employees’ 
Retirement Association of Colorado (PERA).  Title 24, Article 51, Part 12 of the Colorado 
Revised Statutes (CRS) assigns the authority to establish and amend plan provisions to the State 
Legislature.  PERA issues a publicly available financial report that includes information on the 
HCTF.  That report may be obtained at www.copera.org/investments/pera-financial-reports.  
 
Benefits Provided - The HCTF provides a healthcare premium subsidy to eligible benefit recipients 
and retirees who choose to enroll.  Eligibility to enroll is voluntary and includes benefit recipients, 
their eligible dependents and surviving spouses, among others.  Eligible benefit recipients may 
enroll in the HCTF upon retirement, upon the occurrence of certain life events, or on an annual 
basis during an open enrollment period.  The health care premium subsidy is based on the 
benefit structure under which the member retires and the member’s years of service credit.   

Proportionate share 
of the net pension liability $ 24,242,539     $ 19,211,817     $ 14,837,465     

1%
Increase
(8.25%)

1% Current
Decrease Discount Rate
(6.25%) (7.25%)
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Note 6: Postemployment Healthcare Benefits (Continued) 
 
General Information (Continued) 
 
The maximum service-based premium subsidy is $230 per month for benefit recipients who are 
under 65 years of age and who are not entitled to Medicare, and $115 per month for benefit 
recipients who are over 65 years of age or who are under 65 years of age and entitled to Medicare.  
An additional subsidy is provided if the benefit recipient has not participated in Social Security 
and is not otherwise eligible for Medicare Part A.  The maximum subsidy is based on 20 or more 
years of service.  The subsidy is reduced for each year of service less than 20 years.  The 
benefit recipient pays the remaining portion of the premium not covered by the subsidy. 
 
Contributions - As established by Title 24, Article 51, Section 208 of the CRS, 1.02% of the 
School’s contributions to the School Division Trust Fund (SDTF) (see Note 5) is apportioned to 
the HCTF.  No employee contributions are required.  These contribution requirements are 
established and may be amended by the State Legislature.  The School’s apportionment to the 
HCTF for the year ended June 30, 2019, was $65,836, equal to the required amount. 
 
OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 
 
At June 30, 2019, the School reported a net OPEB liability of $959,512, representing its 
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability of the HCTF.  The net OPEB liability was measured 
at December 31, 2018, and the total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2017.  Standard update procedures 
were used to roll forward the total OPEB liability to December 31, 2018.  
 
The School’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on the School’s contributions to the 
HCTF for the calendar year ended December 31, 2018, relative to the contributions of all 
participating employers.  At December 31, 2018, the School’s proportion was 0.0705242330%, 
which was an increase of 0.0034017227% from its proportion measured at December 31, 2017.  
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Note 6: Postemployment Healthcare Benefits (Continued) 
 
OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (Continued) 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the School recognized OPEB expense of $94,219. At June 
30, 2019, the School reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

School contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $40,912 will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net OPEB liability in the subsequent fiscal year.  Other amounts reported as 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 
recognized as OPEB expense as follows:  

 
 
 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 3,483              $ 1,461              
Changes of assumptions and other inputs 6,731              
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments 5,518              -                      

Changes in proportion 71,046            -                      
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 40,912            -                      

Total $ 127,690          $ 1,461              

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Year Ended June 30,
2020 $ 17,989            
2021 17,989            
2022 17,989            
2023 21,822            
2024 9,193              
Thereafter 335                 

Total $ 85,317            
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Note 6: Postemployment Healthcare Benefits (Continued) 
 
OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (Continued) 
 
Actuarial Assumptions - The actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2017, determined the total 
OPEB liability using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods 
included in the measurement. 
 

 
Healthy mortality assumptions for active members were based on the RP-2014 White Collar 
Employee Mortality Table.  The mortality rates incorporate a 70 percent factor applied to male 
rates and a 55 percent factor applied to female rates.  Healthy, post-retirement mortality 
assumptions were based on the RP-2014 White Collar Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table, with 
certain adjustments.  For disabled retirees, the mortality assumption was based on 90 percent 
of the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table. 
 
Health care cost trend rates are based on published annual health care inflation surveys in 
conjunction with actual plan experience, building block models and heuristics developed by 
actuaries and administrators, and other projected trends. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on the results 
of the 2016 experience analysis for the periods January 1, 2012, through December 31, 2015, 
and were adopted by PERA’s governing board on November 18, 2016.  In addition, certain 
actuarial assumptions pertaining to per capita health care costs and the related trends are 
analyzed by PERA’s actuary as needed. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on the HCTF investments was determined using a log-
normal distribution analysis in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected return, net of investment expense and inflation) were developed for each major asset 
class.  These ranges were combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by 
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and 
then adding expected inflation. 

Price inflation 2.4%
Real wage growth 1.1%
Wage inflation 3.5%
Salary increases, including wage inflation 3.5%
Long-term investment rate of return, net of plan
investment expenses, including price inflation 7.25%

Discount rate 7.25%
Health care cost trend rates:
Service-based premium subsidy 0.0%
Medicare plans 5.0%
Medicare Part A premiums:
   3.25% for 2018, gradually rising to 5.00% in 2025
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Note 6: Postemployment Healthcare Benefits (Continued) 
 
OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (Continued) 
 
The most recent analysis of the long-term expected rate of return was adopted by PERA’s 
governing board on November 18, 2016 and included the target allocation and best estimates of 
geometric real rates of return for each major asset class, as presented previously (see Note 5). 
 
Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.25%.  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions 
will be made at the current contribution rate.  Based on this assumption, the HCTF’s fiduciary 
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future OPEB payments to current 
active and inactive employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on HCTF 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB 
liability.   
 
Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The following presents the 
School’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.25%, 
as well as the School’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.25%) or one percentage point higher (8.25%) 
than the current rate, as follows:  

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates - The 
following presents the School’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using the 
current healthcare cost trend rates, ranging from 3% to 5%, as well as the School’s proportionate 
share of the net OPEB liability if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one 
percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rates, as follows:  
 

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Detailed information about the HCTF’s fiduciary net position 
is available in PERA’s separately issued financial report, which may be obtained at 
www.copera.org/investments/pera-financial-reports. 
 
 

Proportionate share 
of the net OPEB liability $ 891,316          $ 959,512          $ 946,906          

Decrease Trend Rates Increase

Current
1% Healthcare Cost 1%

Proportionate share 
of the net OPEB liability $ 1,073,610       $ 959,512          $ 861,968          

(6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
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Note 7: Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Claims and Judgments 
 
The School participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially funded 
by revenues received from other governmental entities.  Expenditures financed by these 
revenues are subject to audit by the appropriate government.  If expenditures are disallowed due 
to noncompliance with program regulations, the School may be required to reimburse the other 
government.  At June 30, 2019, significant amounts of related expenditures have not been 
audited but management believes that disallowed expenditures, if any, based on subsequent 
audits will not have a material effect on the overall financial position of the School.  
 
Contingencies 
 
The School has pending complaints and threatened litigation.  The outcome of these actions 
cannot be determined at this time.  However, management believes the outcome will not have a 
significant effect on the School’s financial position. 
 
Special Education 
 
As part of its charter contract with the District, the School has agreed to maintain a special 
education reserve to pay for extraordinary costs required to provide a free appropriate public 
education to special education students.  Any withdrawals from the reserve must be approved 
by the District, and the reserve must be restored within two years.  At June 30, 2019, this reserve 
was reported as restricted fund balance in the General Fund, in the amount of $200,000.  
 
TABOR Amendment 
 
In November 1992, Colorado voters passed the TABOR Amendment to the State Constitution 
which limits state and local government taxing powers and imposes spending limitations.  The 
Amendment is subject to interpretation, but the School believes it is in substantial compliance with 
the requirements of the Amendment.  As required by the Amendment, the School has 
established a reserve for emergencies, representing 3% of qualifying expenditures.  At June 30, 
2019, the emergency reserve was reported as restricted fund balance in the General Fund, in the 
amount of $350,000.  
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Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability
School's Proportion of the

Net Pension Liability 0.1084981011% 0.1181325853% 0.0837696300% 0.0764677634% 0.0648855962%

School's Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability $ 19,211,817    $ 38,199,880    $ 24,941,458    $ 11,695,205    $ 8,794,178      

School's Covered Employee-Payroll $ 5,964,713      $ 5,449,318      $ 3,759,731      $ 3,332,448      $ 2,718,235      

School's Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Employee-Payroll 322% 701% 663% 351% 324%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage of the Total
Pension Liability 57% 44% 43% 59% 63%

School Contributions

 Statutorily Required Contribution $ 1,254,751      $ 1,027,967      $ 868,343         $ 642,997         $ 519,454         

Contributions in Relation to the
Statutorily Required Contribution (1,254,751)     (1,027,967)     (868,343)        (642,997)        (519,454)        

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ -                     $ -                     $ -                     $ -                     $ -                     

School's Covered Employee-Payroll $ 6,454,499      $ 5,441,956      $ 4,711,485      $ 3,623,439      $ 3,074,451      

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered Employee-Payroll 19.44% 18.89% 18.43% 17.75% 16.90%

This schedule is presented to show information for 10 years.  Until information for the full 10-year period is available,

information will be presented for the years it is available.

6/30/19 6/30/18 6/30/17 6/30/16 6/30/15

12/31/18 12/31/1412/31/1512/31/1612/31/17

Public Employees' Retirement Association of Colorado School Division Trust Fund
June 30, 2019

Stargate Charter School

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Contributions

(A Component Unit of Adams County School District No.12)

See accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.  35



Proportionate Share of the Net
OPEB Liability
School's Proportion of the

Net OPEB Liability 0.0705242330% 0.0671225103%

School's Proportionate Share of the
Net OPEB Liability $ 959,512         $ 872,324         

School's Covered Payroll $ 5,964,713      $ 5,449,318      

School's Proportionate Share of the
Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll 16% 16%

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage of the Total
OPEB Liability 17% 18%

School Contributions

 Statutorily Required Contribution $ 65,836           $ 55,508           

Contributions in Relation to the
Statutorily Required Contribution (65,836)          (55,508)          

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ -                     $ -                     

School's Covered Payroll $ 6,454,499      $ 5,441,956      

Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll 1.02% 1.02%

This schedule is presented to show information for 10 years.  Until information for the full 10-year period is available,

information will be presented for the years it is available.

6/30/19

Stargate Charter School
(A Component Unit of Adams County School District No. 12)

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability and Contributions

Public Employees' Retirement Association of Colorado Health Care Trust Fund
June 30, 2019

12/31/18 12/31/17

6/30/18

See accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.  36



Revenues

Local Sources
Per Pupil Revenue $ 11,107,808    $ 10,754,675    $ 10,746,829 $ (7,846)            
District Mill Levy 174,295         1,000,871      131,084 (869,787)        
Tuition and Fees 868,230         868,230         757,493 (110,737)        
Food Service Fees 40,153           17,000           11,108 (5,892)            
Rental Income -                     -                     3,551 3,551             
Investment Income 24,000           36,000           108,509 72,509           
Miscellaneous 86,500           162,500         964,509 802,009         

State Sources
Capital Construction 348,590         418,728         405,826 (12,902)          
Grants 144,608         192,361         340,812 148,451         

Federal Sources
Grants 13,768           74,948           95,834 20,886           
Total Revenues 12,807,952    13,525,313    13,565,555    40,242           

Expenditures

Instruction
Salaries 4,587,206      4,797,206      4,781,809 15,397           
Employee Benefits 1,514,378      1,514,378      1,444,857 69,521           
Purchased Services 169,460         169,460         26,651 142,809         
Supplies 230,153         230,153         338,716 (108,563)        
Total Instruction 6,501,197      6,711,197      6,592,033      119,164         

Supporting Services
Salaries 1,887,132      1,887,132      1,866,688 20,444           
Employee Benefits 741,672         741,672         608,673 132,999         
Purchased Services 1,429,567      1,550,567      1,228,609 321,958         
Supplies 395,925         500,925         461,881 39,044           
Building Lease 2,165,686      2,165,686      2,165,686 -                     
Total Supporting Services 6,619,982      6,845,982      6,331,537      514,445         

Total Expenditures 13,121,179    13,557,179    12,923,570    633,609         

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (313,227)        (31,866)          641,985         (673,851)        

Other Financing Sources
Proceeds from sale of assets -                     -                     3,600 -                     
Transfers -                     -                     345,000 -                     

Net Change in Fund Balance (313,227)        (31,866)          990,585         (1,022,451)     

Fund Balance, Beginning of year 1,511,543      1,511,543      1,134,984 (376,559)        

Fund Balance, End of year $ 1,198,316      $ 1,479,677      $ 2,125,569      $ 645,892         

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Positive
Variance

FinalOriginal

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

Stargate Charter School

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
(A Component Unit of Adams County School District No. 12)

General Fund

See accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.  37
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Note 1: Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and 
Contributions 

 
The Public Employees’ Retirement Association of Colorado (PERA) School Division Trust Fund’s 
net pension liability and associated amounts are measured annually at December 31, based on 
an actuarial valuation as of the previous December 31.  The School’s contributions and related 
ratios represent cash contributions and any related accruals that coincide with the School’s fiscal 
year ending on June 30.  
 
Changes in Assumptions and Other Inputs 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2019, the total pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of December 31, 2017.  The following revised economic and demographic 
assumptions were effective as of December 31, 2017.  
 

 Investment rate of return assumption of 7.25% per year, compounded annually.  This 
assumption did not change from the prior year. 

 Price inflation assumption of 2.4% per year.  This assumption did not change from the 
prior year. 

 Real rate of investment return assumption decreased from 4.85% per year, net of 
investment expenses, to 4.78%.  The rate reflected in the roll-forward calculation of the 
collective total pension liability to the measurement date increased from 4.78% to 7.25%. 

 Wage inflation assumption of 3.5% per year.  This assumption did not change from the 
prior year. 

 Healthy and disabled mortality assumptions are based on the RP-2014 Mortality Tables. 
 
 
Note 2: Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability 
 
Budgetary Information 
 
A budget is adopted for the School on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting 
principles.  The School adheres to the following procedures to establish the budgetary 
information reflected in the financial statements.  
 

 By June 1, management submits to the Board of Directors a proposed budget for the fiscal 
year commencing the following July 1.  The budget includes proposed expenditures and 
the means of financing them.  

 Prior to June 30, the budget is adopted by the Board of Directors.  
 Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level.  Revisions that alter 

the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the Board of Directors.  
 All budgets lapse at fiscal year end.  

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Supplementary Information 
 



Assets

  Cash $ 252,890         $ 263,485 $ (216,375)        $ (300,000)        $ -                     
  Accounts Receivable 9,905             -                     (9,905)            -                     -                     

Total Assets $ 262,795         $ 263,485         $ (226,280)        $ (300,000)        $ -                     

Liabilities

  Accounts Payable $ 10,861           $ -                     $ (10,861)          $ -                     $ -                     
  Due to Student Groups 251,934         264,441 (216,375)        (300,000)        -                     

   
Total Liabilities $ 262,795         $ 264,441         $ (227,236)        $ (300,000)        $ -                     

  

6/30/18 Additions Deductions 6/30/19
Balances Balances

Transfers

Stargate Charter School
(A Component Unit of Adams County School District No. 12)

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019

See accompanying Independent Auditors' Report.  39



Board of Directors 
Stargate Charter 
Highlands Ranch, Colorado 

We have audited the financial statements of the Stargate Charter (the School) as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2019 and have issued our report thereon 
dated October 28, 2019.  Professional standards require that we provide you 
with the following information related to our audit.  

Our Responsibility under Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated May 20, 2019, our 
responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to express opinions 
about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your 
oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  Our 
audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of its 
respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and 
perform our audit to obtain reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit of 
financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, 
as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the School solely for the 
purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance 
concerning such internal control.  

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that 
are, in our professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing 
the financial reporting process.  However, we are not required to design 
procedures specifically to identify such matters.  

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
(RSI).  However, we did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the RSI. 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, our firm, has complied 
with all relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. 
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Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  A 
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the School is included in Note 1 to the 
financial statements.  In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise 
management about the appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. There have 
been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in significant accounting policies 
or their application during 2019.  No matters have come to our attention that would require us, 
under professional standards, to inform you about (1) the methods used to account for significant 
unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant accounting policies in controversial or 
emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 
 
Accounting Estimates 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management’s judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge 
and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain 
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial 
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly 
from those expected.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the 
significant estimates in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements 
as a whole.  
 
Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 
 
For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known 
and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, 
and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards 
require us to also communicate the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 
on the relevant classes of transactions, account balances or disclosures, and the financial 
statements as a whole and each applicable opinion unit. There were no uncorrected immaterial 
misstatements. 
 
In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected 
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit 
procedures.  The attached schedule summarizes corrected financial statement misstatements 
identified by us as a result of our audit procedures which were brought to the attention of, and 
corrected by, management.  
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, 
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the 
financial statements or the auditors’ report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 
arose during the course of our audit.  
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Representations Requested from Management 
 
We have requested certain written representations from management, which were included in a 
letter dated October 28, 2019. 
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no difficulties dealing with management during the audit process.  We have 
requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a second opinion on certain situations.  If a consultation 
involves the application of an accounting principle to the School’s financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to contact us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with 
other accountants.  
 
Other Audit Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the School’s auditors.  
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and 
the responses were not a condition to our retention.  
 
Conclusion 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and 
management of the Stargate Charter and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone 
other than these specified parties.  
 
 
 
Greenwood Village, Colorado 
October 28, 2019 
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Collaborative for Exceptional Education 
Special Education & Gifted and Talented Program Review 
Stargate Charter School 11/4/2019-11/6/2019 

Strengths to Leverage   

Existing & New 
Leadership 

● With the addition of the Director of Student Services position systems, structures, and accountability are 
beginning to take shape!  Stacy has already begun making changes to meet compliance indicators previously 
identified by the district as unmet (i.e. increasing student involvement and choice in the ALP goal development 
process).  

● Parents and staff are pleased with the addition of the new Executive Director.  They have already seen how Michael 
has taken some of the principals’ burdens to allow them to be more effective in their roles. Michael is already 
making structural shifts to begin to streamline communication and create more efficiencies in the work. 

● Principals have many years of experience and have been at the schools for many years!  
● Principals communicate and meet often to collaborate on initiatives and alignment.  

Staff Mindset & 
Experience 

● Staff who were interviewed enjoy working at Stargate and have a growth mindset in improving their practice.  
● Stargate incentivizes their teachers to take graduate courses to improve their practice and teachers take full 

advantage of this offering. 
● All learning specialists and service providers were highly qualified and most had multiple years of experience 

serving special populations. 
● Parent interviews yielded that teachers have a Students First attitude and that their students do not feel 

stigmatized in receiving services. 
● Culture of the learning services staff was positive and collaborative 
● Experienced Interventionists & ELD teacher at the Elementary level are providing strong instruction  
● When asked, all GenEd teachers were able to share which students had IEPs and 504 plan and what their 

accommodations were. 
● Carla Dickens! She is thorough in her IEP writing, has a wealth of knowledge about kids, families, school history, 

and serving twice exceptional students 
● Teachers are encouraged to continue their development if serving their diverse learner populations.  Students are 

currently participating in ELL PDs and the school pays for them to attend professional development and university 
level classes to support their development. 

Facility & 
Environment is 
Conducive to 
GT & SPED 
Populations 

● Classroom environments were conducive for providing students with choice in seating and movement. 
● Break out spaces in both schools provide opportunities for interventions and were utilized consistently throughout 

the observations. 

 



 

● School has access to exemplary facilities that make project based learning, talent exploration and development, 
and independent investigative learning possible (i.e. ADROIT building, performing arts stage, indoor gym, outdoor 
athletic spaces, band/music room, etc.) 

Opportunities to Improve  Overarching Trends 

Data driven 
decision- 
making  

Determination of Services  
● Often there were goals in areas where data did not demonstrate a need for, or vice-versa, no goals in areas 

that needs were demonstrated in. 
● In most cases, service minutes do not appear to be aligned to evidenced-based practices.   

Need for MTSS referral that is triggered by data, not just teacher and parent referrals 
● Current MTSS model is completely contingent upon adult referrals which means there could be students who 

have needs not being addressed. 

Documentation  Documentation of Parent & Student Involvement 
● IEP and Prior Written Notice include minimal amounts of parent/student voice despite parents saying that 

they were very involved. 
● Reports of minimal involvement of secondary students in meetings 

○ Individuals interviewed shared that often students do not want to join IEP for fear of getting behind 
class.   

Documentation of data driven decision-making 
● IEP and PWN do not provide a rationale for why goals were not included when needs are demonstrated in the 

IEP, LRE and hours were chosen, and why accommodations are being provided when there is no evidence of 
need in that area. 

Documentation of behavior support 
● Not all students with noted behavior concerns or goals had a behavior plan and crisis plan. 

Development of 
systems and 
roles/responsibili
ties for 
communicating, 
implementing, & 
progress 

Lack of opportunity built in to collaborate 
● Schedule lacks common planning time for both GenEd teachers as well as for GenEd teachers and SpEd 

teachers/paraprofessionals  to collaborate.  This leads to paraprofessionals being used only for providing 
accommodations but does not lead to planned targeted support and access being provided in the general 
education classroom. 

● Behavior communication  
○ Teachers report concerns with how often behavioral events take place and communication does not 

take place to the case manager.  Without a system of conferring with the case manager, the school 
may end of disciplining a student for behaviors that are a manifestation of the disability. 



 

monitoring 
plans 

● Intentionality of model and use of adults 
○ Interviews and observations demonstrated that pull-outs were often being used to work on grade 

level content (i.e. assessments, homework, etc.)  and not specialized instruction to develop skills.  
● Paraprofessional role in the GenEd 

○ Currently, they purely meant to provide accommodations and behavioral support but could they be 
used in a more targeted way? 

Thoughtful 
integration of 
ALPs and IEPs 
for Twice 
Exceptional 
Students 

The ALP and IEP of a Twice Exceptional Student are written in isolation and neither reference the other in the BOE.   
● At times, the plans contradicted each other. 
● BOEs in the IEP should include the impact of the GT identification on the student’s academic progress. 

   
 
Potential Threats 

● Data-driven decision-making in IEP meetings and alignment of services to data 
● PWN documentation of decision-making 
● Behavioral documentation, communication, and consistency of support 
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Nondiscrimination/Equal Opportunity Policy 

Stargate’s Commitment to Equal Opportunity 

Stargate School (the “School”“Stargate”) is committed to providing a safe learning and work 

environment where all members of the schoolStargate community are treated with dignity and 

respect. The SchoolStargate is subject to complies with all federal and state laws that as well 

asnd constitutional provisions prohibitting discrimination on the basis of disability, race, creed, 

color, age, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, religion, ancestry,  or need for 

special education services, and any other protected status. 

 

Accordingly, no otherwise Qqualified students, employees, applicants for employment, or 

members of the public shallwill not be excluded from participation in, , be denied the benefits of, 

or be subjected to,  discrimination under any sSchool program or activity on the basis of race, 

color, national origin, religion, age, sex , (which includesincluding marital status), sexual 

orientation, gender identity, disability, or need for special education services, or any other 

protected status. Further, Discrimination discrimination against employees and applicants for 

employment based on age and genetic information is also prohibited. in accordance with state 

and federal law. 

 

Stargate will use This this policy shall be used to address all concerns or complaints regarding 

unlawful discrimination and harassment that arise within the Stargate community. This policy 

will also apply to , andconcerns or complaints regarding any related retaliation  for having 

engaged in activity protected by the civil rights laws that prohibit discrimination, including and 

harassment. Protected activities include: 1) filing a complaint alleging discrimination, 

harassment, or retaliation; 2) participating in an investigation of discrimination, harassment or 

retaliation; and 3) opposing conditions that result in discrimination, harassment, or retaliation. 

 

In keeping with these commitments, the SchoolStargate shallwillfollowing shall be objectives of 

the school: 
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1. Promote the rights and responsibilities of all individuals as set forth in state 

and federal constitutions, pertinent state and federal laws, and applicable 

judicial interpretations; 

2. Encourage positive human values for children and adults 

who have different personal and family characteristics; 

3. Recognize the inherent dignity of all individuals without regard for 

socio-economic, racial,  ethnic, and/or other characteristics; 

3. Consider potential 

benefits to or adverse consequences on underrepresented 

or vulnerable populations within the Stargate community

 in all decisions affecting Stargate; 

4. Utilize educational experiences to build each individual's pride in the community 

in which he or she lives; 

5. Regularly review all policies and practices of 

Stargate in order to achieve the objectives of this policy to the greatest extent 

possible; 

6. Investigate and resolve promptly any complaints of unlawful discrimination, 

harassment, and retaliation; and  

7. Investigate and appropriately counsel and/or discipline, staff and students found to 

be responsible for incidents of harassment or unlawful discrimination in violation of this 

policy. 

 

Annual Written Notice 

At the beginning of each school year, Stargate will issue written notice t

hat advises students, parents, employees and the general 

public that Stargate’s educational programs, activities and employment opportunities 

are offered without regard to race, color, age, sex (including 

marital status), sexual orientation, gender identity, religion, national origin, ancestry, creed, 

disability or need for special education services. In that 

written notice, Stargate will also state that it does not 

discriminate on the basis of age or genetic information in its employment programs. The 
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written notice will include the name/title, address and telephone number 

of the person designated to coordinate Title IX and Section 504 and ADA compliance activities. 

 

The notice will be disseminated to persons with limited English language skills in the 

person's own language. It will also be made available to persons who are visually or hearing 

impaired. The notice will be included in all school media 

containing general information including: 1) staff handbooks; 2) School publications; 3) 

Stargate’s website; 4) Recruitment materials for prospective students; 5) recruitment 

materials for prospective employees; 5) application forms for prospective students; 6) 

applications forms for prospective employees; 7) employment vacancy announcements, 8) 

community handbooks; 9) school program notices; 10) summer program newsletters; and 11) 

annual letters to parents. 

 

Harassment is prohibited 

Harassment based on a person's race, color, national origin, ancestry, creed, religion, sex, marital 

status, sexual orientation, gender identity, age, disability, need for special education services, 

or other protected statuses, is a form of discrimination prohibited by state and federal law. 

Preventing and remedying harassment in schools helps to ensure a safe, 

nondiscriminatory environment 

for 

Stargate community. All such harassment by Stargate 

employees and students is strictly prohibited. Such harassment by individuals 

who are related to Stargate, are on Stargate’s campus, or are involved Stargate activities or 

events is also prohibited. 

 

All Stargate employees and students share the responsibility to ensure that harassment does not 

occur at school, on Stargate property, at any school-sanctioned activity or event, or off school 

property when such conduct could have the result of creating a hostile 

environment at Stargate, or any curricular or non-curricular activity or event. 
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For purposes of this policy, harassment is any unwelcome, hostile and offensive verbal, written 

or physical conduct based on or directed at a person's race, color, national origin, ancestry, creed, 

religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, age, disability or need for special education 

services that: 

 

Sexual Harassment is Prohibited 

Sexual harassment is a form of gender discrimination that is prohibited at Stargate. 

 For the purposes of this policy, sexual harassment is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, 

 

Sexual harassment may include a range of subtle and not-so-subtle behaviors and may involve 

individuals of the same or different genders. Depending on the circumstances, these behaviors 

may include: unwanted sexual advances or requests for sexual favors; sexual jokes and 

innuendo; verbal abuse of a sexual nature; commentary about an individual’s body, sexuality, or 

gender; leering, whistling or touching; insulting or obscene 

comments or gestures; displays of sexually suggestive objects or pictures; 

and other physical, verbal or visual conduct of a sexual nature. 

 

Retaliation is Prohibited 

Retaliation is prohibited conduct under this policy. Retaliation occurs when individuals who 

have engaged in protected activities then experience a negative repercussion that deprives them 

of equal opportunity in education or employment as a result of that protected activity. Protected 

activities include reporting a complaint of discrimination or harassment, participating in an 

investigation of discrimination or harassment, and/or engaging in activities protected by the civil 

rights laws.  

 

No student, employee or member of the public will be subject to adverse treatment in retaliation 

for any good faith report of harassment under this policy, or for any other activity protected by 

the civil rights laws. Violation of this anti- retaliation provision may exist regardless of whether 

the underlying complaint of discrimination is substantiated. 
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Individuals who believe that they have experienced retaliation must report their concerns to the 

Compliance Officer or other appropriate Stargate administrator. When a complaint is made, 

Stargate will conduct a prompt inquiry as described below. An act of retaliation is a violation of 

this policy and will subject the violator to disciplinary or remedial measures. Stargate will take 

all steps necessary to ensure that all participants involved in the discrimination or harassment 

inquiry be able to participate free from retaliation. 

 

Reporting discrimination, harassment and retaliation 

All Stargate community members should report discrimination, harassment, or retaliation that 

occurs within the Stargate community. Reporting such conduct is essential to Stargate’s ability to 

respond to these issues quickly and appropriately.  

 

Any student who believes he or she has been a victim of unlawful discrimination, harassment or 

retaliation or who has witnessed such unlawful discrimination or 

harassment will immediately report the incident to an administrator, counselor, teacher or 

Stargate’s Compliance Officer and file a complaint as outlined in the 

procedures set forth below. 

 

Any employee, applicant for employment, or member of the public who believes he or she has 

been a victim of unlawful discrimination or harassment or who has witnessed such unlawful 

discrimination or harassment will file a complaint with either their immediate supervisor 

or Stargate’s compliance officer. All school employees who witness unlawful 

discrimination or harassment are responsible for taking prompt and effective action to stop it, as 

prescribed by Stargate. 

 

If the individual alleged to have engaged in prohibited conduct is the person designated as the 

compliance officer, the complaint will be made to the Stargate Board President who 

will designate an alternate compliance officer to investigate the matter. 

 

School Action 
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Once Stargate receives a report or otherwise becomes aware of a situation involving 

discrimination, harassment, or retaliation, it will take appropriate action to promptly and 

impartially investigate the allegations. 

When appropriate, Stargate will take interim measures during the investigation to protect against 

When appropriate, Stargate will take interim measures during the investigation to protect against 

When appropriate, Stargate will take interim measures during 

the investigation to protect against further unlawful discrimination, harassment or retaliation. To 

 

Stargate community members who knowingly file false complaints or give 

false statements in an investigation will be subject to discipline, up to and including 

suspension/expulsion for students and termination of employment for employees.  

 

 

 

 

 

Upon determining that incidents of unlawful discrimination or harassment are occurring in 

particular school settings or activities, Stargate will implement measures designed 

to to end any unlawful behavior, prevent the 

recurrence of such behavior, prevent possible retaliation against the individuals for engaging in 

protected activities, impose remedies to address problems in implicated areas or activities, and 

correct the effects of any such discrimination. 

 

Any student or employee who engages in unlawful discrimination or harassment will be 

disciplined according to applicable Board policies and Stargate will take 

reasonable action to restore lost educational or employment opportunities to any individual(s) 

impacted by the discrimination, harassment, or retaliation. If criminal 

conduct is suspected or implicated, Stargate’s compliance officer will determine whether 

appropriate law enforcement officials should be notified. [Need mandatory reporting section 

here] 
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Training and Awareness Programs 

 

 

 

 

 

Students, school employees and Board members will receive periodic training related 

to recognizing and preventing unlawful discrimination and harassment. School employees 

will receive additional training related to handling reports of unlawful discrimination and 

harassment. The training will include, but not be limited to: 

1. awareness of groups protected under state and federal law and/or targeted groups;  

2. how to recognize and react to unlawful discrimination and harassment; and  

3. proven harassment prevention strategies.  

 

Complaint Procedure 

Stargate is committed to providing a working and learning environment that is free 

from unlawful discrimination and harassment. Stargate will promptly respond to 

concerns and complaints of unlawful discrimination and/or harassment; take action in response 

when unlawful discrimination and/or harassment is discovered; impose appropriate sanctions on 

offenders in a case-by-case manner; and protect the privacy of all those involved in unlawful 

discrimination and/or harassment complaints as required by state and federal law. When 

appropriate, the complaint will be referred to law enforcement for investigation. 

 

Stargate has adopted the following procedures to promptly and fairly address 

concerns and complaints about unlawful discrimination and/or harassment. Complaints may be 

submitted orally or in writing. 

Parties to a Complaint of Discrimination, Harassment, or Retaliation 

1. “Impacted Party" is the person who was harmed by the alleged  a student, the parents or 

guardians of a student under the age of 18 acting on behalf of a student, an employee of 

Stargate, or member of the public who is directly affected by and/or is witness to an 

alleged violation of Board policies prohibiting unlawful discrimination or harassment. 
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2. “Responding Party” is the person alleged to have engaged in the conduct that violated 

this policy. 

3. “Reporting Party” is the person who informed Stargate of the alleged discrimination, 

harassment, and/or retaliation. In some cases, the Impacted Party and the Reporting Party 

may be the same person.  

4. “Witness” is any person who may have information about the alleged discrimination, 

harassment, or retaliation or events related to the allegations..   

 

Compliance Officer 

The Stargate Compliance Officer is the employee designated by the Stargate 

Governance Board to receive complaints of alleged unlawful discrimination and harassment. The 

Compliance Officer will be identified by name/title, address, telephone number and email 

address. If the designated individual is not qualified or is unable to act in this role, the 

Board President will designate a Stargate administrator or other qualified individual who 

will serve until a successor is appointed by the Board. The Compliance Officer may appoint 

a designee, on a case-by-case basis, provided the designee has, in the Compliance Officer’s 

determination, appropriate specialized training in anti-discrimination and investigations. The 

following person has been designated as the Compliance Officer for Stargate for the 

2019-2020 school year: 

 

Karin Ranta-Curran, JD 

Stargate School Title lX Coordinator  

14530 Washington Street 

 Thornton, Colorado 80023  

Phone: 303.450.3936  

titleixcoordinator@stargateschool.org 

 

Compliance Officer's duties 

The Compliance Officer will be responsible for conducting or coordinating an investigation 

and coordinating all complaint procedures and processes for any alleged violation of federal or 

state statute or Board policy prohibiting unlawful discrimination, harassment or retaliation. The 

mailto:titleixcoordinator@stargateschool.org
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Compliance Officer's duties will include providing notice to students, parents/guardians of 

students, employees and the general public concerning the compliance process, providing 

training for school staff regarding the prohibition of discrimination/harassment/retaliation in all 

school programs, activities and employment practices, disseminating information concerning the 

forms and procedures for the filing of complaints, ensuring the prompt investigation of all 

complaints, and identifying and endeavoring to address any 

patterns or systemic problems that arise during the review of complaints. The Compliance 

Officer may delegate any and/or all of the foregoing responsibilities as necessary and/or 

appropriate under the circumstances. 

 

Complaint procedure 

An impacted party is encouraged to promptly report the incidents to 

appropriate Stargate administrators. All reports 

received by teachers, counselors, principals or other school employees will be promptly 

forwarded to the Compliance Officer. If the 

Compliance Officer is the individual alleged to have engaged in the prohibited conduct, the 

complaint will be forwarded to the Board President. 

 

An impacted party may file with the Compliance Officer a complaint 

charging Stargate, another student, any school employee, or a third party with unlawful 

discrimination or harassment. Complaints may be made orally or in writing. Persons who wish to 

file a written complaint will be encouraged to use Stargate’s approved form

 found here [include link]. 

 

Under no circumstances

 will complainants be required to follow or comply with any hierarchical/

chain of command reporting requirements or protocols, communication norms, or be 

required to informally attempt to resolve or address concerns prior to filing a complaint. This is 

particularly true when the Responding Party is a school administrator or school manager, All 

complaints may be filed at any time directly with the Compliance Officer. 
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All complaints will include a detailed description of the alleged events, the dates the alleged 

events occurred, and names of the parties involved, including any witnesses. Although Stargate 

community members are encouraged to file a complaint  as soon as possible 

after the incident. 

 

In the event that the student or parent/guardian is not able or prefers not to provide a written 

statement, the Compliance Officer will designate a responsible individual to receive the 

complaint verbally. A language translator will be provided to 

the Impacted Party or Reporting Party if needed. 

 

The Compliance Officer will confer with the Impacted Party 

as soon as is reasonably possible

 following the Compliance Officer's receipt of the complaint 

in order to obtain a clear understanding of the basis of the complaint. 

 

The 

Compliance Officer will attempt to meet with the 

Responding Party  as soon as the Compliance Officer understands the complaint and its 

bases. If the Responding Party is a student

, the Compliance Officer will ask the student’s parents/guardians to 

participate. The Compliance Officer will then obtain the Responding Party’s response to the 

complaint.  

 

The Compliance Officer will treat the complaint as confidentially as possible and will provide 

information about the complaint to third-parties on a need-to-know basis. In some situations, 

the Compliance Officer may provide information about the 

complaint to witnesses if, in the Compliance Officer's judgment, it is 

necessary to achieve a full and accurate disclosure of material information or to otherwise 

resolve the complaint. 

 

Advisements Provided to Impacted and Responding Parties 
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During the initial meetings with the Impacted and Responding Parties, the Compliance Officer 

will  provide a description of the complaint process. The Compliance Officer will explain 

avenues for informal and formal resolution and explain that both the 

Impacted Party and the Responding Party have the 

right to exit the informal process and request a formal resolution of the matter at any time. [do 

we want to allow the opposite? Going from formal to informal] 

 

The Compliance Officer will also explain to the Impacted Party and the Responding Party that 

any request for confidentiality will be honored so long as doing so does not preclude Stargate 

from responding effectively to prohibited conduct and preventing future prohibited conduct. 

 

The Compliance Officer will also explain that whether or not the individual files a written 

complaint or otherwise requests action, Stargate is required by law to take steps to 

correct the unlawful discrimination or harassment and to prevent recurring unlawful 

discrimination, harassment or retaliation

.  

 

 

 

Informal Resolution Process 

Informal resolution will not be used to process complaints against a school employee and will 

also not be used between students where acts of violence, including sexual assault, are alleged. 

 

Either the 

Impacted Party and/or the Responding Party 

may request that the matter be resolved through 

informal resolution. If the Compliance Officer believes that the matter is suitable for 

such resolution, the Compliance Officer must obtain both parties’ agreement to initiate an 

informal resolution process. No party will be compelled to resolve a complaint falling under this 

policy informally and either party may request an end to an informal process at any time.  
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During the informal resolution process, he Compliance Officer may attempt to resolve the matter 

informally through mediation, counseling, or other non-disciplinary means. Upon agreement of 

both parties, the Compliance Officer may engage a trained, neutral third-party, typically an 

uninvolved Stargate administrator, to assist with the informal resolution process. If both parties 

feel a resolution has been achieved through the informal process, then no further compliance 

action must be taken. 

 

 

 

Formal action 

1. Investigation 

If informal resolution is inappropriate, unavailable,  or unsuccessful, the Compliance Officer 

will promptly investigate the allegations to determine whether and/or 

to what extent, unlawful discrimination or harassment has occurred. In some cases, the 

Compliance Officer may not conduct the investigation but instead engage a trained, neutral 

third-party to conduct the investigation. This person may be an uninvolved Stargate 

administrator or someone unaffiliated with Stargate. In such cases, all information collected 

by the third-party will be reviewed by the Compliance Officer in a manner appropriate to the 

circumstances. 

 

The Compliance Officer may consider the following types of information in determining 

whether unlawful discrimination or harassment occurred: 

a. statements by any witness to the alleged incident,  

b. evidence about the relative credibility of the parties involved,  

c. evidence relative to whether the 

Responding Party has been found to have engaged in prohibited conduct against 

others in the past,  

d. evidence of the aggrieved individual and/or alleged victim's reaction or change in 

behavior following the alleged prohibited conduct. In cases of harassment, it is 

important to note that some students may respond to harassment in ways that do not 
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manifest immediately, but may surface some time after the harassment occurred, 

 e. evidence about whether the Impacted Party 

took action to protest the conduct. However, failure to immediately complain may 

reflect a fear of retaliation or a fear that the complainant may not be believed 

rather than that the alleged harassment did not occur, 

f. evidence and witnesses or testimony presented by the parties involved,  

g. other contemporaneous evidence, and/or  

h. any other evidence deemed relevant by the Investigator. 

 

In deciding whether conduct is a violation of law or policy, all relevant circumstances will 

be considered by the Compliance Officer, including: 

a. the degree to which the conduct affected one or more student's education or one or 

more employees work environment, 

 b. the type, frequency, duration, and severity of the conduct,  

c. the identity of and relationship between 

Impacted Party and 

the Responding Party,  

d. the number of individuals alleged to have engaged in the prohibited conduct and 

number of individuals impacted by the prohibited conduct, 

 e. the ages of the 

Impacted Party and the Responding Party, 

and   

f. the location of the incident and context in which it occurred.

 

 

In certain circumstances, the Compliance Officer may prepare or ask to be prepared a 

written report containing findings and recommendations, as appropriate, and submit the report to 

the Executive Director or his/her designee or the appropriate school official

. The Compliance Officer's report will be advisory and will not bind the Executive Director 

. The Compliance Officer's report will be 

advisory and will not bind the Executive Director /designee or Stargate to any 
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particular course of action or remedial measure. The Executive Director or designee will 

determine any sanctions or other action deemed appropriate.  The Compliance Officer may 

provide verbal recommendations and advice to the Executive Director or other appropriate 

school officials regarding complaints or other issues raised under this policy. 

 

To the extent permitted by federal and state law, the parties involved as determined by 

Stargate may be 

notified in writing of the final outcome of the investigation and 

remedial actions  taken by Stargate

. 

 

 

Outside agencies 

In addition to, or as an alternative to, filing a complaint pursuant to this regulation, a person may 

file a discrimination complaint with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights 

(OCR); the Federal Office of Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC); or the 

Colorado Civil Rights Division (CCRD). The addresses of these agencies are listed below. 

 

Denver Office for Civil Rights (OCR), U.S. Department of Education, 1244 Speer Blvd., Suite 

310, Denver, CO 80204-3582. Toll Free: 800-421-3481, language assistance is available; 

Telephone: 303- 844-5695. Fax: 303-844-4303. TDD: 800-877-8339. Email: OCR.Denver 

@ed.gov.  

 

Federal Office of Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC), 303 E. 17th Avenue, 

Suite 410, Denver, CO 80203. Toll Free: 800-669-4000. Fax: 303-866-1085. TTY: 800-669-

6820. Email: info@eeoc.gov 

Colorado Civil Rights Division (CCRD), 1560 Broadway, Suite 1050, Denver, CO 80202. Toll 

Free: 800-262-4845. Telephone: 303-894-2997. Fax: 303-894-7830. Email: 

CCRD@dora.state.co.us 

 

LEGAL REFS.: 20 U.S.C. §1681 (Title VII, Education Amendments of 1972)  
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20 U.S.C. §1701-1758 (Equal Employment Opportunity Act of 1972)  

(Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967)  

29 U.S.C. §701 et seq. (Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973) 

42 U.S.C. §12101 et seq. (Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act) 

42 U.S.C. §2000d (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended in 1972)  

42 U.S.C. §2000e (Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964) 

42 U.S.C. §2000ff et seq. (Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008)  

34 C.F.R. Part 100 through Part 110 (civil rights regulations)  

C.R.S. 2-4-401 (13.5) (definition of sexual orientation, which includes transgender)  

C.R.S. 18-9-121 (bias-motivated crimes) discrimination)  

C.R.S. 24-34-301 et seq. (Colorado Civil Rights Division)  

C.R.S. 24-34-301 (7) (definition of sexual orientation, which includes transgender)  

C.R.S. 24-34-402 et seq. (discriminatory or unfair employment practices) discrimination based on pregnancy, 

childbirth or related conditions; notice of right to be free from such discrimination in places of public 

accommodation)  

C.R.S. 24-34-602 (penalty and civil liability for unlawful discrimination)Stargate Discrimination Reporting  

 



 Monthly Report to the Stargate Governing Board  

Committee Name:  Community Relations Committee  

Chairperson:  Trang Siska and Katherine Horne 

Report Date:   11/18/19 

Meeting Dates:  11/20/19 

Summary:  

Completed:  

● Fall Parent/Teacher Conferences – October - supplied meals, drinks and snacks for 118+ over two days.  
● Stargate 25th Anniversary - assisted with celebration 
● Chili Cook off/Mac’n’Cheese S’mac down & Bingo - ~200 attendees 

Questions for the Board:   

● Events are not being attended by most families (exception is Harry Potter night). 

● Large events take planning ahead of time and volunteers to run the event. There is a 

small number of parents who volunteer for each event, some of whom are challenging if 

the events are worthwhile. 

● Could the volunteer time be more productively spent in a different manner? 

Does the board have an opinion: 

1. Should CRC shift focus to: 

a. small events for a specific age/grade? (Rather than large events for whole school). 

b. energize school spirit and camaraderie via social media rather than events?  

c. encourage attendance by all ages at sporting events to bolster school spirit? 

2. What are the board’s thoughts regarding CRC using a separate/additional email marketing 

campaigns?  May CRC use a “mailchimp” account which families can subscribe to via a link on 

the website?  Our challenge is that information for events is in amongst the school weekly 

email which is only partially read by many people. 

3. Dodgeball - are there concerns with holding this event? 

 

Action Items:  



  

 Upcoming events: 

● WinterFest, Dec 11th - assist with decorations and volunteer coordination 

● Giving Tree - assisting and coordinating. 

● Spring conferences - meals and snacks for staff 

● Dodgeball tournament - March 13 

● Art Show - April (dates and details to be finalized) 

● Teacher appreciation - May 

Future meetings this school year: 

● December 11th, 8.15am, Daylight Donuts 

● Usually 2nd Wednesday of the month at 8.15am. 

  

 
 

 



Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
 

NOVEMBER 

15, 2019 
  STARGATE SCHOOL 

DIAL IN NUMBER: 605-472-5469 
ACCESS CODE - 322745 

 

MEMBERS ATTENDENCE X 
 

MEMBERS ATTENDENCE X 

LYNNE ALLEN, CHIEF FINANCIAL 

OFFICER 
x 

X 
RAQUEL WAHAB  

APRYL SWEAT, PRES OF THE 

FOUNDATION BRD 
x (via phone) 

 
VANI RAJU  

SAMANTHA HOWORKO, GOVERN. BRD 

TREASURER 
x 

 
MATT HERZOG  

MIKE BONFIGLIO, CHAIRMAN x  WILLIAM KARLIN  

ANGELINA LEONARDI   
 KATIE BRANNAN, SECRETARY   

     

 
 

REVIEW OF QUARTERLY FINANCIALS: LYNNE ALLEN 
 

DISCUSSION Lynne reviewed financials through October Everything is as expected.  

  

ACTION ITEMS PERSON RESPONSIBLE DEADLINE 

None N/A N/A 

   

 

AUDIT REVIEW: LYNNE ALLEN 
 

DISCUSSION Reviewed completed audit. Auditors will be at board meeting to present and everything is as expected . 

 

 

CONCLUSIONS Audit was reviewed by Lynne Allen and the finance committee and will be presented to Board in November. 

 

ACTION ITEMS PERSON RESPONSIBLE DEADLINE 

Audit to be reviewed and presented at Board meeting Lynne Allen, Auditors November Meeting 

   

 

FUNDRAISING: LYNNE ALLEN 
 

DISCUSSION Community Funded was rolled out and is seemingly well received by the community 

CONCLUSIONS Community funded  - will need to figure out what do to for giving week.  

ACTION ITEMS PERSON RESPONSIBLE DEADLINE 

none n/a n/a 

   

   

 

 



DISCUSSION 
Lynne Allen has spoke with Chase Bank and their 
non-profit have a better return than Wells Fargo on 
the Commercial Card. 

 

CONCLUSIONS  

Committee should review policy and procedures related to 
Babnking and other items to ensure they are reviewed every 
3-5 years.  
Action items 

PERSON RESPONSIBLE DEADLINE 

Committee finalize video topics Samantha Howorko November meeting 

   

 

OTHER: NONE 
 

DISCUSSION   

 

  

 

   

   

   

 



 

 

Stargate School will provide a differentiated program designed specifically to meet the needs of identified intellectually 

gifted learners in order to challenge each student’s academic abilities, support their unique emotional needs, promote 

individual character development and encourage a life-long love of learning. 

FUNDRAISING MEETING AGENDA/MINUTES 
November 11th ,  2019 

6:00 pm 

 

1) General Fundraising Efforts 
1. Magnus Coffee (Dannielle) 

We have our own website; order thru the website, gets sent directly to your house. We get 25% of 
each order! 

AR: Flyer, digital copy of flyer, Facebook post and in our newsletters 

THANK YOU Dannielle!! 

2. Community Funded 

7 buckets for donating $$ towards the Annual Campaign; We hope this will help us raise additional $$. 

Launch date: Mid-Oct Jane Baker & Samantha Howorko 

3. Fall Fundraiser update/plan (Emily Nye) 

a. Delivery of items will be Tuesday 11/19 and 11/20 after school at the Maintenance Barn 
b. Will deliver Eagle’s Landing items directly to Eagle’s Landing 
c. AR: Denise to send out email to FR committee to help on Tuesday & Wednesday - DONE 

i. Helpers arrive ~12:30pm on Tuesday for sorting 
d. AR: Denise to include delivery info in Star News - DONE 

i. Additional prize distribution will occur after Thanksgiving 
ii. Pick up time Tuesday 2:30pm – 4:30pm 

iii. Pick up time Wednesday 1:00pm – 2:45pm 
iv. Big Prize → bring pizza in and do the video game bus 
v. 15 Kiddos qualified for the party (Emily to check with Missy on ‘Bring a Friend” 

vi. AR: Emily will work with Missy to schedule 
THANK YOU Emily!! 

4. Spirit Wear Sale (Dannielle Dye) 

a. All items delivered. AR: Star News mention that items were Delivered- DONE 

THANK YOU Dannielle!! 

5. Dining out night plans (April Mallick) 

a. August 27th Your Pie (no flyers but calendar) 
b. Sept 30th Chick-Fil-A (flyers, calendar, Facebook) → $755 to Stargate 
c. August 30th Kona Ice (4 dates in the Fall, 4  dates in the Spring) 



 

 

Stargate School will provide a differentiated program designed specifically to meet the needs of identified intellectually 

gifted learners in order to challenge each student’s academic abilities, support their unique emotional needs, promote 

individual character development and encourage a life-long love of learning. 

d. Next Door → good chance we have the October date (25%) → we made $325!! 
e. Papa Murphy’s – November  20 and 21st 

i. Also added to Star News – check with Jane that all are covered - DONE 
ii. Denise to print flyer and deliver by Thursday November14 for Monday folder - DONE 

iii. Email blast to community – ask Jane 
iv. Ask Jane to add to official Facebook  
v. Denise to send an email to FR Committee for volunteers - DONE 

f. Top Golf → speaking to them on Monday (Launi) 
g. Contest(s) → April to decide when/what 
h. Need information on what we make off of each and whether or not they pay us (Samantha to 

follow up with Lynne) 
i. November → can we do a community camp information night at the school? (Denise to ask 

Jane and Lynne) – email sent on 8/28 to Jane/Lynne, etc. 
j. Need to get Adroit Day and/or Field Day dates (Denise to ask Jane – note sent 9/6) 

Thank you April!! 

6. King Soopers cards (Julie Sadler) 

a. Here's info for King Soopers Community Rewards for July 1 to September 30, 2019: 
b. Earnings:  $6377.64 
c. Users:  259 
d. Need to get flyer out in Monday folders (Denise), added to Star News 11/11 – DONE 

Thank you Julie!! 

7. Skate City Sept 26th and March 19th, Middle School Night (October 3rd) 

8. Denver Nuggets/Colorado Avalanche game nights 

9. American Furniture Warehouse 

a. Flyer for AFW? AR: Denise 

10. Brick Pavers (Dannielle) 

a. Paper orders need to become online orders; AR: Denise to touch base with Dannielle 
11. Non-Gala Gala update/plans (Ann Brown/Denise Vitt) 

a. We are going to mix it up this year and not plan a formal gala 
b. We still want an event where we can have a Silent and Live auction but we want to try and get 

more family participation 
i. Carnival? 

ii. Fun Run? 
iii. Online Auction? 

c. Emily contacted Butterfly Pavilion; price is reasonable.  
d. Ann Brown to contact Denver Zoo. 



 

 

Stargate School will provide a differentiated program designed specifically to meet the needs of identified intellectually 

gifted learners in order to challenge each student’s academic abilities, support their unique emotional needs, promote 

individual character development and encourage a life-long love of learning. 

e. We still plan to do a Silent and Live auction to raise funds; our focus is also on trying to make 
this event accessible to more families at Stargate. 

f. Booster-a-thon for Fall 2020 as our Fall Fundraiser (Ann Brown to co-ordinate) 
 

2) Fundraising Allocation Committee (FAC)  
3) Open Mic  (10 minutes) 
4) Next Meeting:  Thursday, December 5th, 6pm Panera at The Orchard’s 



Monthly Report to the Stargate Governing Board 

Committee Name: Grant Committee 

Chairperson: Tara Rickerson 

Report Date:  11/18/19 

Meeting Dates: Committee Mtgs: 11/1, 11/15 

Summary: 

1. Grants submitted since last report: 

a. None 

2. The following grants are up next: 

a. MonarchWatch.org - Pollinator Plants for trail 

b. Les Paul Foundation 

c. Safer Schools Garden Grant 

d. Adobe Employee Community Grant 

3. Grant Determinations: 

a. None 

Questions for the Board:  

None 

Action Items: 

1. Our next meeting will be on 12/6/19 

 



STARGATE ACCOUNTABILITY COMMITTEE MEETING 

Stargate School, Thornton, CO 

Monday,  November 4, 2019 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

ATTENDEES 

STAFF: 

Juli Bassman, Secondary Teacher 

Patrick Williams, Secondary Teacher 

 

PARENTS: 

Apsara Aryal 

Becca Borden 

Rob Cernich 

Jessica Greco 

 

BOARD MEMBERS: 

Lisa Hosfelt 

 

NOT ATTENDING: 

Bethanny Tarantino-Kelly, Secondary Teacher  

Lindsey Paquette 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

LOCATION 

Stargate School, Thornton, CO 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND READING OF THE MISSION 

Mr. Cernich, the Parent Chairman, called the meeting to order at 5:43pm.  Ms. Borden read the 

Stargate mission.    

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Ms. Borden motioned to approve the minutes from the last meeting.  Mr. Cernich seconded the 

motion.  The motion to approve the minutes from the last meeting passed unanimously.  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

TRAINING REVIEW 

Mr. Cernich reviewed relevant training materials with Committee Members.  (Accountability 

Handbook) 

 

 

 

STAFF/PARENT SURVEY  



Review of Questions:  

PARENT: Question about lunch (#13) requested to be deleted as there are no alternative options 

for lunch. Needs approval by the board. Mr. Williams motioned to approve the Parent survey, 

Mr. Cernich seconded. The motion to approve the Parent survey passed unanimously. 

 

STAFF: Question about retaliation (#19) requested to be in relation to the past year, as per the 

board. Ms. Greco motioned to approve the Staff survey, Ms. Borden seconded. The motion to 

approve the Staff survey passed unanimously. 

 

TIMELINE: Both surveys to open Jan 6, 2020 for two weeks to Jan 20, 2020. Admin to 

communicate and allow time for staff during PD day Jan 6. Ms. Greco motioned to approve the 

Timeline, Mr. Williams seconded. The motion to approve the Timeline passed unanimously.  

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

UIP DISCUSSION 

Ms. Borden led a discussion of the UIP. Discussion of Performance Indicators from Prior Years, 

Trends, Priority Performance Challenges, Root Causes, and Action Plans.  

 

Mr. Williams motioned to approve the UIP with minor editing to be included, Ms. Greco 

seconded. The motion approved unanimously.  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

NEXT MEETING: 

Dec. 2nd.  

KPI discussion (Ms. Borden and Ms. Paquette to discuss new measures to bring) 

Training Review Module 24 - Ms. Borden 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

With there being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 7:30pm.    

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Colorado's Unified Improvement Plan for Schools  
| STARGATE CHARTER SCHOOL UIP 2019-20 STARGATE CHARTER SCHOOL | ADAMS 12 FIVE STAR SCHOOLS | 0020 | School: 
District: Org ID:  

1519 | Performance Plan: Meets 95% Participation | School ID: Framework: Draft UIP  
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

There were many competing priorities in the initial years of Stargate’s expansion.  Now that some of those priorities have been largely 
addressed, our improvement planning has shifted to focus on areas that were strong prior to the expansion and today need some 
rebuilding: Social-Emotional Learning (SEL) and Instructional Practices.  SEL is being implemented to give students the skills to excel both 
in and out of the classroom.  The program selected is a research-based, teacher-informed, and classroom-tested program to promote the 
social-emotional development, safety, and well-being of children using age-appropriate explicit lessons, games, activities and media. 
Students who have participated in this program from other schools have seen improvements in emotion management, situational 
awareness, and academic achievement.  The focus on instructional practices includes the district-wide implementation of instructional 
strategies for English Language Learners (ELL), which overlaps with gifted learning practices. These include meaningful and purposeful 
visuals and multiple opportunities for demonstrating learning, as well as the implementation of the gradual release model of instruction in 
which teachers gradually transfer ownership of the content from instructor to student.  In support of these instructional practices, feedback 
and development practices for teachers have also been implemented.  Administrators spend a minimum of one hour weekly in the 
classrooms, observing instructional practices and offering feedback to teachers.  The feedback is then incorporated into a professional 
growth plan for each teacher in the school. 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION 

Brief description of the school.  
 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN INFORMATION  
 
The school/district is submitting this improvement plan to satisfy requirements for (check all that apply): State Accreditation  
 
SCHOOL CONTACT INFORMATION  
Name:  Michael Henderson  
Title:  Executive Director of Academics 
Mailing Street:  14530 Washington Street  
Mailing City / State / Zip Code:  Thornton CO - Colorado 80023  
Phone:  (303) 450-3936  
Email:  michael.henderson@stargateschool.org 
 
 

mailto:michael.henderson@stargateschool.org


 
PRIOR YEAR TARGETS / CURRENT PERFORMANCE 
Consider the previous year's progress toward the school targets. Identify the overall magnitude of the school performance challenges.  
 
PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Academic Growth  
 
Prior Year Target: Students in grades 6-8 will score a 50 in the median growth percentile.  
Performance: This target was not met, as the median growth percentile declined in both math (59 to 45) and ELA (56 to 42.5) for this 
group in 2019.  
Reflection on Current Performance: The median growth percentile for middle school students has been inconsistent in recent years while 
remaining within the “typical” range.   ELA improved from 30 in 2017 to 56 in 2018 and then declined to 43 in 2019. In math, the score 
increased from 52 in 2017 to 59 in 2018, then declined to 45 in 2019.  Stargate’s approach to acceleration for our gifted students requires 
that we consider the relevance of median growth percentile for this group.  Through acceleration, our students are often learning and being 
exposed to standards that they aren’t being tested on through the state grade level assessment.  Typically, consistent increases in median 
growth percentile lead to greater academic proficiency.  However, further research and consideration is required to understand this 
relationship when acceleration practices are being utilized with gifted students.  
 
PERFORMANCE INDICATOR: Student Engagement  
 
Prior Year Target: Adroit curriculum fully implemented and understood -- 90% of staff and 65% of parents understand the purpose of the 
Adroit program, as measured by surveys -- 95% of students participate in the Expo Day -- A survey will be administered to students 
following the Adroit Expo, 75% of respondents will agree with the statement, "I was able to explore my passion in a meaningful way." -- 
95% of teachers will participate in Depth and Complexity Framework training -- 75% of staff will implement Depth and Complexity strategies 
into curriculum -- 75% of staff will implement one Design Thinking unit into curriculum. 
Performance: More than 75% of staff (76%) and parents (80%) agreed or strongly agreed they understand the purpose of the Adroit 
program, as measured by surveys and 97% of students participated in the Expo Day.  Furthermore, 92% of students agreed or strongly 
agreed with the statement "I was able to explore my passion in a meaningful way" in a survey following the Adroit Expo.  While 100% of 
teachers participated in Depth and Complexity Framework training, other priorities prevented staff from measuring implementation of Depth 
and Complexity strategies into the curriculum.  For Design Thinking, 52% of staff were able to integrate one unit into the curriculum. 
Reflection on Current Performance: Results suggest that the Adroit program has matured to a level where students and parents have 
sufficient understanding and support for the outcomes.  There is still an opportunity for staff to increase their understanding and support for 
the program.  Design Thinking and Depth and Complexity are both useful frameworks for gifted education.  Implementation will continue to 
be a slow rollout due to other competing priorities.  We can build on the foundation established through training at a later time. 



 
 
TREND ANALYSIS 
Only notable trends appear in the UIP and will automatically populate for associated Performance Challenges. 
 
Trend Direction: Declining 
Notable Trend: Yes 
Performance Indicator Target: Social Emotional Needs of Students 
Staff increasingly disagree or strongly disagree that social emotional curriculum and programs are meeting students’ needs.  Over the past 
two years, staff who indicated they disagree or strongly disagree with the survey question “I feel the social / emotional curriculum and 
programs meet the needs of students” have grown from 38% in 2016-2017 to 51% in 2018-2019.  In a recent survey of Stargate high 
school students, 92% indicated they agree or strongly agree that “The school is meeting my academic needs,” while only 77.3% indicated 
the same for “The school is meeting my emotional needs.” 
 
Trend Direction: Declining 
Notable Trend: Yes 
Performance Indicator Target: Academic Growth  
Academic growth scores are “typical” for both elementary and middle school, yet scores are erratic or declining since 2014.  After 
experiencing a large increase in elementary ELA median growth percentiles in 2018, scores in 2019 saw a small decline.  (2014 = 56; 2016 
= 54; 2017 = 48; 2018 = 70; 2019 = 63) Elementary students’ math median growth percentile continued to increase, up to 69 in 2019 from 
64 in 2018.  (2014 = 63; 2016 = 53; 2017 = 50; 2018 = 64; 2019 = 69)  After showing improvement in 2018, middle school students' math 
median growth percentile dropped below previous years' levels to 45. (2014 = 67; 2016 = 65; 2017 = 52; 2018 = 59; 2019 = 45)  After 
returning to its previous norm range of 56, middle school students' ELA median growth percentile declined with a score of 43. (2014 = 59; 
2016 = 54; 2017 = 30; 2018 = 56; 2019 = 43) 
 

PRIORITY PERFORMANCE CHALLENGES 
 
PERFORMANCE CHALLENGE: Social Emotional Learning 
Notable Trend: Staff increasingly disagree or strongly disagree that social emotional curriculum and programs are meeting students’ 
needs. 
 
Social-emotional learning is a key part of the differentiated learning environment Stargate strives to offer.  The SEL program in place before 
Stargate’s expansion was perceived to provide good support for students’ social emotional needs.  However, this was lost with the school 
expansion, highlighting the benefits of SEL as well as the need for a structured program, targeted to the needs of gifted learners at all grade 
levels.  



 
PERFORMANCE CHALLENGE: Instructional Practices 
Notable Trend: Academic growth scores fall within the typical range, yet scores are erratic or declining since 2014. 
 
Achievement scores indicate that student outcomes are strong.  Growth scores suggest that there is variability in students’ learning 
experience from year to year. While there are many factors influencing these growth scores, a focus on enhancing instructional practices 
will provide benefits to learner growth and achievement as well as teacher development. 

ROOT CAUSES 

PRIORITY PERFORMANCE CHALLENGE:  Social Emotional Learning 
Root Cause(s) Associated with this Performance Challenge:  
Teachers had time allotted for SEL but did not have clarity on how to use the time as there has been no formal curriculum in place.  The 
focus on Gifted Discussion Groups based on Terry Bradley’s work decreased during the expansion and a structured program was selected 
to assist in prioritizing the focus on social emotional learning.  
How was root cause selected and verified: 
The root cause was presented by the administration and validated within the SAC, based on experience and data from parent, staff and 
student (high school only) surveys.    It has been selected as a priority performance challenge because it is a key element of the 
differentiated environment Stargate strives to offer and it is one of the top areas of concern from the survey data collected in the last year. 

PRIORITY PERFORMANCE CHALLENGE:  Instructional Practices 
Root Cause(s) Associated with this Performance Challenge: 
The school expansion, beginning in 2016, created many other needs, including the Charter Reauthorization with Adams 12 Five Star 
Schools, the focus on resolving multiple Office of Civil Rights cases, and increased expectations on Advanced Learning Plans for the 
school.  As a result, instructional feedback was not being given to teachers on a regular basis and instructional practices were not the focus 
of professional development.  In addition, in the absence of an Executive Director during the 2018-19 school year, building principals were 
required to take on additional duties that pulled them away from instructional leadership.  
How was root cause selected and verified: 
The root cause was presented by the administration and validated within the SAC, based on experience.  This area has been selected as a 
priority performance challenge because it has received less focus since the expansion and has because it has the potential to offer a better, 
more consistent learning experience for our students. 

 



ACTION PLAN(S) 
 
MAJOR IMPROVEMENT STRATEGY: Implement Social Emotional Learning for all grades 
Root Cause: No formal curriculum has been in place since the school expansion. 
Describe what success will look like: 
Students who have participated in this program at other schools have seen improvements in emotion management, situational awareness, 
and academic achievement.  As evidence of these improvements at Stargate, we expect an increase in positive responses to survey items 
regarding social emotional needs from staff, students, and parents. 
 

Benchmark Name/Description Start Date End Date Frequency  Key Personnel 

Program Implementation 
K-8:  Second Step 
High School:  Transactional  Analysis 

September
/October 
2019 

May 2020 Weekly Elementary classroom 
teachers, middle school 
counselors and middle school 
Connect teachers 

Identify Gaps for Gifted Learners Ongoing June 
2020 

Ongoing Elementary classroom 
teachers, middle school 
counselors and middle school 
Connect teachers with 
administration 

Revise and Add Content June 2020 Aug. 
2020 

Ongoing SEL Leadership Team 
(Counselors, teachers and 
administration) 

Measure outcomes August 
2020 

May 2021 Ongoing SEL Leadership Team 
(Counselors, teachers and 
administration) 

 

 



Action Step Name/Description Start Date Target Date Resources Key Personnel 

Implement Second Step - Elementary October 
2019 

May 2020 Second Step 
Online 
Curriculum 

Elementary Admin, 
Counselor, and Teachers 

Implement Second Step - Middle School Septembe
r 2019 

May 2020 Second Step Secondary Admin, Middle 
School Counselors and 
Teachers 

Implement SEL - High School December 
2019 

March 2019 Transactional 
Analysis 

Secondary Admin, HIgh 
School Counselors and 
Teachers 

Identify program gaps specific to gifted learners Septembe
r 2019 

May 2020  SEL Leadership Team 
(Counselors, teachers 
and administration) 

Identify content to fill gaps May 2020 July 2020  SEL Leadership Team 
(Counselors, teachers 
and administration) 

Implement content to fill gaps for gifted learners August 
2020 

May 2021  Admin, Counselors and 
Teachers 

Measure outcomes Ongoing    

 

Performance Indicator Metric Target 2019-2020 Target 2020-2021 Interim Measures 2019-2020 

Stargate stakeholder 
satisfaction with 
outcomes of 
social/emotional 
programming, measured 

High School/Middle 
School Student Climate 
Survey 
 
Elementary 3rd - 5th 

Baseline data 
gathering 
 
The target for the 
Spring of 2020 is to 

Incremental growth 
based on baseline data 
 
 
 

Direct instruction weekly K-8 
using Second Step and 9-12 
Transactional Analysis 



by the staff, community, 
and student climate 
survey (or portion of the 
survey) 

grade climate survey  
 
High School baseline in 
Fall of 2019 was 77.3% 
positive response to “The 
school is meeting my 
emotional needs.” 

keep the positive 
response between 
75% and 80% on the 
high school Climate 
Survey  

MAJOR IMPROVEMENT STRATEGY: Implement Instructional Practices & Instructor Evaluation 

Root Cause: Since the school expansion, instructional feedback has not being given to teachers on a regular basis and instructional 
practices have not been the focus of professional development.   In addition, in the absence of an Executive Director during the 2018-19 
school year, building principals were required to take on additional duties that pulled them away from instructional leadership.  
Describe what success will look like:  Timely and consistent teacher feedback through the evaluative process, informal walkthroughs, 
and professional development specific to ELL strategies and Gradual Release Model will lead to building teacher instructional capacity 
resulting in increased academic proficiency. 
 

Benchmark Name/Description Start Date End Date Frequency  Key Personnel 

Implement ELL Instructional Strategies August 
2019 

May 
2020 

Monthly All instructional staff and 
admin 

Implement Gradual Release Model August 
2019 

May 
2020 

Through 
Professional 
Growth Plan 

All instructional staff and 
admin 

Implement Weekly Walkthroughs August 
2019 

May 
2020 

Weekly Principals, APs  and ED 

Implement Teacher Evaluation Process September 
2019 

May 2020 Ongoing Principals and APs 

 



Action Step Name/Description Start Date Target 
Date 

Resources Key Personnel 

ELL Essential Implementation Plan August 
2019 

May 2019 Monitoring 
ELL Look For 
Tool and/or 
PD attendance 

Adams 12  ELL 
Department & Stargate 
Implementation Team 

Professional Growth Plans submitted and reviewed between 
teacher and evaluator 

September 
12, 2019 

November 
15,  2019 

Professional 
Growth Plan 

Principals, APs 

Initial Classroom Observation, Pre-Conference and 
Post-Conference  

September 
12, 2019 

November 
15, 2019 

Look For 
Observation, 
Pre/Post 
Conference 
Form 

Principals, APs 

 

Performance Indicator Metric Target 2019-2020 Target 2020-2021 Interim Measures 2019-2020 

Stargate School will 
recognize an increase in 
the overall School 
Performance  Framework 
percentage (2019 = 
88.7% & 2018  = 94%) 

School Performance 
Framework Summary of 
Ratings  

SPF = 91% SPF = 94% Completing Professional 
Development as outlined in 
action step 

95% of Stargate teachers 
will create a professional 
goal focused on an ELL 
strategy or an element of 
the Gradual  Release 
Model. 

Teacher Professional 
Growth Plans submitted 
and reviewed  with 
evaluator. 

95% or greater 97% or greater Reviewing Professional 
Growth Plans 



95% of Stargate teachers 
will implement the 
intentional use of ELL 
strategies during 
instruction.  

Adams 12 
implementation 
documentation (ELL 
Look For Tool and PD 
attendance) 

95% or greater N/A Monitoring ELL 
Implementation (Look For 
Tool and/or PD attendance) 

Individual growth plans in 
place for teachers 

Percentage of teachers 
with plans in place by 
end of 2019-2020 school 
year 

99% 100% Percentage completed before 
Winter Break 

Completion of weekly 
walkthroughs by 
administration, including 
delivery of feedback to 
teachers 

Percentage of school 
session weeks that 
walkthroughs are 
completed 

90% 97% Weekly tracking of classrooms 
visited and feedback delivered 

 



 Parent Survey Questions 2019-2020 
1. The Principals make decisions based on what's best for Stargate students and staff. 
2. The Stargate Governance Board makes decisions based on what's best for Stargate 

students and staff. 
3. I feel comfortable with the way Stargate manages and communicates its finances. 
4. I understand that all pertinent information about the school and its policies and 

procedures are on the website, and I know where to find them. 
5. I am familiar with the school's official Communications Pathway 
6. Please provide any comments you may have on the above topics. 
7. I feel the social/emotional curriculum and programs meet the needs of students. 
8. I understand the purpose and vision of the Adroit program at Stargate. 
9. I believe the Adroit program is a positive addition to Stargate's curriculum. 
10. Please provide any comments you may have on the above topics. 
11. I feel that the frequency or number of fundraising events is appropriate (e.g. sale items, 

Gala, Annual Campaign). 
12. I support the full-time presence of a school resource officer (Police Officer) on the 

Stargate campus. 
13. The provided lunch options meet my child's needs. 
14. Please provide any comments you may have on the above topics. 
15. Please provide any comments on support staff (e.g. facilities, nurse, paras, front desk). 
16. How many children do you have attending Stargate? 
17. What grade is this child in for this School Year? 
18. I feel the transition for this student between different school levels (elementary to middle 

to high) and/or grades (e.g. 2nd to 3rd, 7th to 8th) was well-coordinated and positively 
reinforcing. 

19. I am pleased with the level of communication I have with this child's teachers. 
20. I am pleased with the effectiveness of this child's teachers. 
21. My child feels engaged and appropriately challenged in the classroom. 
22. My child enjoys going to school. 
23. My child feels safe at school. 
24. I feel that sufficient guidelines are in place to govern my student's use of technology. 
25. The quality and quantity of technology use in the classroom is educationally appropriate. 
26. I feel that Stargate offers an appropriate variety of specials and electives. 
27. I feel the amount of enrichment opportunities (such as field trips, speakers, community 

service, etc.) my child receives is 
28. On average, the amount of homework my child receives is 
29. Please provide any comments on this particular child's experience at Stargate. 

 



Staff Survey Questions 2019-2020 

1.  What is your position? 

2. I receive appropriate and timely communication from the administration. 

3. I have adequate opportunity to collaborate with my peers regarding curriculum and 

instructional best practices. 

4. I am familiar with the school's official Communications Pathway 

5. Please provide any comments or suggestions you may have about how to improve 

communication at Stargate. 

6. Stargate has an effective school improvement and long-range planning process. 

7. I am familiar with the Unified Improvement Plan (UIP), and I participate in the 

implementation of its outlined goals. 

8. The professional development opportunities offered onsite are an effective use of my 

time. 

9. I feel the social / emotional curriculum and programs meet the needs of students. 

10. Please provide any suggestions you may have for improving instruction and 

programming at Stargate. 

11. The administration makes decisions based on what's best for Stargate students and 

staff. 

12. The Stargate Governance Board makes decisions based on what's best for Stargate 

students and staff. 

13. I feel comfortable with the way Stargate manages and communicates its finances. 

14. The administration clearly defines expectations and applies them fairly. 

15. I am comfortable voicing my ideas, suggestions, and concerns. 

16. I feel that the hiring and retention policies are consistently and fairly applied. 

17. Please provide any comments or suggestions you may have about how to improve the 

leadership at Stargate. 

18. Do you perceive there to be an environment of retaliation at Stargate? 

19. In the past year, have you been retaliated against, or witnessed retaliation against 

others, by any of the following:  administrator, colleague, or other? 

20. Considering everything, I am satisfied working at Stargate. 

21. I would recommend Stargate to a friend seeking employment. 

22. I would recommend Stargate to a family member seeking a school for their gifted 

children. 

23. Please provide any comments or suggestions you may have about how to improve the 

school climate at Stargate. 

24. I feel trusted and respected. 

25. I have influence in the decisions that affect my work. 

26. I feel the amount of work required of me is reasonable. 

27. I have adequate technological support and access to necessary materials and services 

to perform my job. 

28. I have an adequate number of parent volunteers to assist when needed. 

29. The team lead/department head system is effective. 

30. The benefits/compensation provided for team lead/department head positions are fair. 



31. Please provide any comments or suggestions you may have about how to improve the 

work environment at Stargate. 

32. I believe the Adroit program is a positive addition to Stargate's curriculum. 

33. I understand the purpose and vision of the Adroit program at Stargate. 

34. Please provide any comments or suggestions you may have about the Adroit program. 

35. Any additional comments? 

36. What do you love about Stargate? 



Monthly Report to the Stargate Governing Board 

Committee Name: Website 

Chairperson: Lisa Griffin 

Report Date:  11/20/19 

Meeting Dates: 1:1 meeting with Lisa and Jane (no meetings of full committee) on 
11/14; group meeting with Lisa, Jane and Lynne on 11/18; attending 11/21 
webinar “how to make website PDFs accessible and ADA compliant” 

Summary: 

Major Accomplishments: 
● Financial Transparency   

o section fully migrated to new StargateSchool.org site (16 pages) – complete 

o supporting documents migrated from Governance site to new Eagles Info Governance folder 

on Google Drive (11 folders, more than 370 individual documents) – complete 

▪ all financial files reviewed and re-named in consistent, descriptive format – complete 

▪ files have not been removed (for now) from Governance Forms and Files but can be 

deleted at any time 

o CDE guidelines for 2019 reviewed and applied to new site - complete 

o links updated on Governance site to point to new content – complete 

o district and state reviews expected over next 2-4 weeks; additional changes will be made if 

requested 

● Fundraising Annual Campaign – created icon for use on home and fundraising pages, updated 

Fundraising web page and modified all links to drive traffic to new Annual Campaign site 

● Social Emotional Learning – content added to K-12 section; new site page created 

● Fall Play – updated website to with information about play and how to purchase tickets; also 

promoted event on social media 

● Fundraising Events – 3 new “Get Involved” section additions/updates to showcase on-going 

fundraising events and opportunities at Papa Murphys, Panda Express and Next Door Eatery 

● Bingo / Chili Event Support - added Community Events to front page to promote Chili/Bingo Night 

(later replaced with Fundraising Annual Campaign link/icon); also revised Bingo/Chili event page with 

event details, including volunteer sign up information 

● SAC updates – quarterly KPI reports and committee meeting minutes added to Governance site to 

bring reporting up to date 

● Board Committees - DLs updated to reflect change in Board liaisons to committees 

 
Upcoming / Major Work in Progress: 

● Website content to better differentiate Stargate - target complete by 12/3 

o reformatting Adroit section to better appeal to site visitors  

o adding Elementary content shared during Curriculum night presentations 

● Governance site transition 

o Reviewed draft framework for site transition 11/18 with J. Baker, including new icons for use 

on landing page; need to review with M.Hoopes and confirm timeline for transition to new 

platform – targeting timeline/work plan completion by 12/6 

o Created folder structure for /transferring/organizing Board and Governance Content – 



received files 11/20 from M.Hoopes; need to review and assess any gaps/additional content 

needed 

● ADA Policy & audit 

o Drafted document based on best practices template for schools and submitted to Board for 

discussion 

o ADA compliance audit to assess levels of compliance on new site – target early Dec 

● stargateschool.org website – post-launch cleanup & enhancements including:  

o monitoring site traffic to gain insight into prospective family traffic 

o Link to Google translator page; it is working on the site today, just need to provide 

explanation & easy access 

o Support, as needed, for new content pending from staff (principals, student services, clubs, 

etc) 

Questions for the Board:  

● No questions at this time for the Board. Need to meet 1:1 with web committee liaison to discuss 

volunteer recruiting for group and plan for volunteer job board.  

Action Items:  No action required at this time for Board.  

  



 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Board Policy: 1.0 Governance Committee Charters 

Revision No:  02 

Review Schedule: Annually – Board of Directors 

Document Number: 1.2 

Adopted:  Annually 

  

 
1.2 Committee Charters 
 

Each Committee authorized by the Board shall have a charter approved by the Board. The charter for each 
standing committee should be reviewed annually by the Board of Directors with collaboration of the committee 
membership. The charter for each ad hoc committee should be reviewed as needed to ensure their purpose is 
fulfilled. In addition, the goals for each committee shall be aligned with their specific charters and the Strategic 
Plan. 
 
The Charters for each committee shall be stored on the governance website. 
 
Standing Committees 
1.2.1.1 School Accountability 
1.2.1.2 Community Relations 
1.2.1.3 Finance 
1.2.1.4 Fundraising 
1.2.1.5 Grant 
1.2.1.6 Recruiting 
1.2.1.7 Website 
1.2.1.8 Fundraising Allocation 
1.2.1.9  Election 
 
Ad Hoc Committees 
1.2.2.2  Administrator Succession 
1.2.2.3 Bond Advisory 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Revision History 
 

Version Date Description of revision 

02 11/20/2019 Updated Election Committee to a standing committee & renamed Head of School 
Search to Administrator Sucession 

01 3/15/2017 Added Bond Advisory Ad Hoc Committee 

00 1/18/2017 Policy Manual Format Updated 

 



Co-Leader Strategy Category Update Frequency Measures include in KPIs? Comments

none Develop a plan for appropriate branding Engaged Community annually May completion

Teresa Network with external stakeholders beyond the 

school to improve school and Board function

Responsible Leadership semi-annually Nov May interaction/participation

Michael Develop and roll out a Parent Code of Conduct Engaged Community annually May completion

Traci Consider a Board needs assessment and evaluate 

need for ongoing professional development

Responsible Leadership semi-annually Nov May self-evaluation

SAC Develop a plan to increase participation in surveys Engaged Community annually Nov Feb participation rates yes

SAC Implement a process to track student transitional 

retention

Differentiated Learning 

Environment

annually May Infinite Campus yes

Michael Adopt Adams 12 best practices for reviewing 

survey results with staff

Exemplary Staff annually May completion

Michael Refine student climate surveys and possibly 

develop a KPI for engagement and curriculum 

transition

Differentiated Learning 

Environment

semi-annually Feb May completion yes

Michael Identify indicators of post-secondary readiness and 

begin to track data

Differentiated Learning 

Environment

semi-annually Feb May AP, Bollman participation, 

post-graduation surveys

yes

Samantha Build relationships between Board and staff Exemplary Staff semi-annually Nov May staff survey, opportunities for 

interaction

Samantha Restructure Fundraising Engaged Community quarterly Nov May participation rates yes

as delegated Implement process for 360 reviews Responsible Leadership annually May completion, staff survey, 

participation

yes

as delegated Forecast building maintenance expenses Financial Stability annually May completion

none Develop succession plan for the Executive Director 

of Finance and Operations; define duties to be 

delegated to staff accountant

Financial Stability annually May completion

Michael Review district policies to ensure compliance or 

seek a waiver

Responsible Leadership semi-annually Nov May completion

Michael Develop an enhanced safety plan, especially as it 

relates to the development of the adjacent 

commercial property

Responsible Leadership quarterly Nov Feb May completion, parent survey

Michael Refine the admissions process and put systematic 

procedures in writing

Differentiated Learning 

Environment

annually Nov completion

Traci Reestablish the Recruiting Committee and develop 

a strategy to increase volunteerism

Engaged Community semi-annually Nov May participation rates yes

Samantha Begin development of an alumni network Engaged Community semi-annually Nov May data gathered

as delegated Strengthen accountability of teachers for the 

standards expected of them

Exemplary Staff quarterly Nov Feb May teacher evaluations, 

classroom visits

as delegated Ensure meaningful and manageable 

implementation of ALPs

Exemplary Staff quarterly Nov May ALP data maybe

as delegated Make available ongoing training in SPED/IEP/504 

compliance

Exemplary Staff quarterly Nov Feb May SPED data

as delegated Ensure SPED Audit results implementation Exemplary Staff quarterly May TBD maybe

as delegated Collect data on 2E learners to ensure compliance 

and appropriate programming

Exemplary Staff semi-annually Nov May SPED data

as delegated Develop and implement K-5 culture strategy Exemplary Staff quarterly Nov Feb May staff survey

as delegated Provide ongoing leadership development of 

principals

Exemplary Staff quarterly Nov Feb May staff survey, 360 reviews

SAC Adopt Adams 12 best practices for reviewing 

survey results with staff

Exemplary Staff annually May completion

as delegated Ensure more effective professional development Exemplary Staff semi-annually Nov May staff survey, other staff 

feedback

Elizabeth Develop and roll out a Parent Code of Conduct Engaged Community annually May completion

Teresa Define, develop and communicate a scope and 

sequence for Adroit

Differentiated Learning 

Environment

semi-annually Nov May completion

Lynne Refine the admissions process and put systematic 

procedures in writing

Differentiated Learning 

Environment

annually Nov completion

as delegated Successfully implement the social-emotional 

curriculum across all levels and determine KPIs for 

measuring success

Differentiated Learning 

Environment

semi-annually Nov May surveys, teacher evals yes

as delegated Review and propose strategy for K-12 curriculum 

alignment

Differentiated Learning 

Environment

annually May completion, survey

Lisa Refine student climate surveys and possibly 

develop a KPI for engagement and curriculum 

transition

Differentiated Learning 

Environment

semi-annually Feb May completion yes

as delegated Implement guidelines for responsible student 

technology use

Differentiated Learning 

Environment

semi-annually Nov May surveys

SAC Identify indicators of post-secondary readiness and 

begin to track data

Differentiated Learning 

Environment

semi-annually Feb May AP, Bollman participation, 

post-graduation surveys

yes

Lynne Develop an enhanced safety plan, especially as it 

relates to the development of the adjacent 

commercial property

Responsible Leadership quarterly Nov Feb May completion, parent survey

as delegated Review and consider revising Stargate's vision and 

core values and develop a long-term strategy

Responsible Leadership annually May completion

Lynne Review district policies to ensure compliance or 

seek a waiver

Responsible Leadership semi-annually Nov May completion

none Implement process for tracking district 

requirements as set forth in the charter contract

Responsible Leadership semi-annually Nov May completion

Finance 

Committee

Document internal controls, policies and checks 

and balances in writing

Financial Stability annually May completion

Finance 

Committee

Begin educating the community about school 

finances through alternate methods, such as charts 

and videos

Financial Stability quarterly Nov May parent survey results

Lynne Build relationships between Board and staff Exemplary Staff semi-annually Nov May staff survey, opportunities for 

interaction

Mark Begin development of an alumni network Engaged Community semi-annually Nov May data gathered

Lynne Restructure Fundraising Engaged Community quarterly Nov May participation rates yes

none Consider capturing data related to parent expertise Engaged Community semi-annually Nov May data gathered

none Review all governance policies for possible revision Responsible Leadership semi-annually Nov May completion

Traci Increase participation in district activities Responsible Leadership quarterly Nov Feb May participation reports yes

Michael Define, develop and communicate a scope and 

sequence for Adroit

Differentiated Learning 

Environment

semi-annually Nov May completion

Elizabeth Network with external stakeholders beyond the 

school to improve school and Board function

Responsible Leadership semi-annually Nov May interaction

Election 

Committee

Develop a plan to increase voter participation Engaged Community semi-annually Feb participation rates yes

none Review and propose strategy for socio-economic 

diversity

Differentiated Learning 

Environment

semi-annually Nov May completion

Teresa Increase participation in district activities Responsible Leadership quarterly Nov Feb May participation reports yes

Michael

Samantha

Teresa

Traci

Report Dates

Lisa

Elizabeth

Lynne

Mark



Mark Reestablish the Recruiting Committee and develop 

a strategy to increase volunteerism

Engaged Community semi-annually Nov May participation rates yes

Lisa Consider a Board needs assessment and evaluate 

need for ongoing professional development

Responsible Leadership semi-annually Nov May self-evaluation

Traci



Key: Summary:
Resolved Case 1 - Resolved & Closed
Duplicate of others Case 2 - Resolved & Closed
Due to the OCR Case 3 - Resolved & Closed
Submitted and awaiting response Case 4 - Resolved & Closed
Waiting for OCR's approval on something 
else before we can complete Case 5 - Resolved & Closed

Case 6 - Resolved & Closed
Case 7 - Resolved & Closed
Case 8 - Resolved in Mediation

Case # 
Reference Case # Resolution Item Date Due Date Submitted Date Resolved Notes

1 08-17-1155
Training materials presented to OCR about non-discrimination related 
to Title VI 9/4/2017

Revision 
requested 9/19/17

1 08-17-1155 The name(s) of the individual(s) providing the training 9/4/2017 9/19/2017

1 08-17-1155
OCR did not approve the trainings provided and required a new 
proposed plan to train 10/4/2017 11/14/2017

1 08-17-1155 Using the OCR approved training, train the staff 1/13/2018 12/7/2017
1 08-17-1155 Provide OCR with specifics of the training (time, place, agenda, etc) 12/7/2017

1 08-17-1155
Memo to the staff, once approved by OCR, regarding 504, Title II, and 
Title VI 9/4/2017

Revision 
requested 9/19/17

1 08-17-1155 OCR requested revisions on the memo 10/4/2017

Additional 
revisions 
requested 
11/14/17

1 08-17-1155 OCR requested additional revisions on the memo 11/29/2017 12/7/2017
1 08-17-1155 Send approved memo to staff 12/7/2017

1 08-17-1155
Documentation sent to OCR to prove the memo was sent and who it 
was sent to 12/7/2017

1 08-17-1155
Report all special education referrals between 7/15/17 through 
12/31/17 1/31/2018 2/14/2018

1 08-17-1155 Report all special education referrals between 1/1/18 through 5/31/18 6/30/2018 5/31/2018 6/8/2018

1 08-17-1155
Convene the student's IEP team to determine if the student is entilted 
to compensatory services 8/5/2017

Additional 
information 
requested 9/19

1 08-17-1155

Report submitted to OCR did not included documentation that the 
student's parents were notified of the compensatory services offered. 
OCR requested documentation to show that. 10/4/2017

Additional 
information 
requested 
11/14/17



Key: Summary:
Resolved Case 1 - Resolved & Closed
Duplicate of others Case 2 - Resolved & Closed
Due to the OCR Case 3 - Resolved & Closed
Submitted and awaiting response Case 4 - Resolved & Closed
Waiting for OCR's approval on something 
else before we can complete Case 5 - Resolved & Closed

Case 6 - Resolved & Closed
Case 7 - Resolved & Closed
Case 8 - Resolved in Mediation

Case # 
Reference Case # Resolution Item Date Due Date Submitted Date Resolved Notes

1 08-17-1155
OCR requested an updated disposition on the remaining issues once 
an agreement is reached with student's attorney

Additional 
information 
requested 
11/14/17

1 08-17-1155
Submit to OCR documentation regarding the meeting, including the 
findings

Additional 
information 
requested 
11/14/17

1 08-17-1155
OCR requested additional information regarding the outstanding 
requests on the meeting and the resolution with the student's attorney 11/29/2017

Additional 
information 
requested 12/7/17

1 08-17-1155
OCR requested additional information regarding the outstanding 
requests on the meeting and the resolution with the student's attorney January, 2018

Additional 
information 
requested 2/14/18

1 08-17-1155
OCR requested documentation demonstrating that all of the 
compensatory services have been provided to the student 3/2/2018 3/8/2018

1 08-17-1155
Implement compensatory services, once the meeting documentation 
has been reviewed and accepted by OCR 3/8/2018

1 08-17-1155
Document to OCR that all compensatory services determined in the 
meeting have been provided to the student 3/8/2018

2 08-17-1218 List of school members who are or may be involved in recruitment 9/21/2017 9/29/2017
2 08-17-1218 Training materials and training on discrimination related to admissions 10/21/2017 9/29/2017
2 08-17-1218 Name(s) and title(s) of proposed individuals to train staff 10/21/2017 12/1/2017
2 08-17-1218 Train staff once training materials are approved 1/30/2018 3/22/2018
2 08-17-1218 Specifics of the training (time, place, agenda, etc) 12/30/2017 3/22/2018
2 08-17-1218 Revise public webpages and admissions policies sent to OCR 10/21/2017 12/15/2017
2 08-17-1218 Additional requests by OCR regarding admissions policies submitted 12/15/2017 12/15/2017



Key: Summary:
Resolved Case 1 - Resolved & Closed
Duplicate of others Case 2 - Resolved & Closed
Due to the OCR Case 3 - Resolved & Closed
Submitted and awaiting response Case 4 - Resolved & Closed
Waiting for OCR's approval on something 
else before we can complete Case 5 - Resolved & Closed

Case 6 - Resolved & Closed
Case 7 - Resolved & Closed
Case 8 - Resolved in Mediation

Case # 
Reference Case # Resolution Item Date Due Date Submitted Date Resolved Notes

2 08-17-1218

Approved public webpages posted and links/screenshots provided and 
written assurances that the school will use the revised admissions 
policies 1/14/2018 1/19/2018

2 08-17-1218
Revised Community Handbook adding language that the school does 
not discriminate 10/21/2017 12/15/2017

2 08-17-1218 Additional requests by OCR regarding Community Handbook language 12/15/2017 12/15/2017

2 08-17-1218
Approved Community Handbook posted to the website and written 
assurances the school will use it 1/14/2018 1/19/2018

2 08-17-1218 Written guidance from the school to ensure non-discrimination 10/21/2017 12/1/2017
2 08-17-1218 Disseminate written guidance of non-discrimination to the staff 12/15/2017 12/15/2017

2 08-17-1218
Documentation guidance was disseminated to the staff and written 
assurances it will be used 12/30/2017 12/15/2017

2 08-17-1218

Submit to OCR all reports, grievances, or complaints, whether oral or 
written, from parents regarding disabilty discrimination in recruitment or 
admissions from 8/1/2017 - 8/31/2018 10/1/2018 9/28/2018 10/2/2018

5 08-17-1374
Written procedure through which complaints of sex discrimination may 
be filed 1/31/2018

Revision 
requested 3/27

5 08-17-1374 Revised written procedure requested by OCR 4/26/2018 4/26/2018 5/11/2018

5 08-17-1374
Disseminate the OCR approved procedure to students, parents, and 
staff in English and Spanish 5/26/2018 5/29/2018

Addiitional 
information 
requested 7/2/18

5 08-17-1374
Provide OCR documentatation of efforts to disseminate the procedure, 
using multiple methods 6/10/2018 5/31/2018

Addiitional 
information 
requested 7/2/18

5 08-17-1374
Document the procedure is uploaded to the website and added to the 
handbooks 8/1/2018 7/31/2018 8/30/2018

5 08-17-1374
Report to OCR on all complaints received pursuant to the procedure 
established in Term 1 and the recipient's response(s) 6/22/2018 6/21/2018 7/2/2018



Key: Summary:
Resolved Case 1 - Resolved & Closed
Duplicate of others Case 2 - Resolved & Closed
Due to the OCR Case 3 - Resolved & Closed
Submitted and awaiting response Case 4 - Resolved & Closed
Waiting for OCR's approval on something 
else before we can complete Case 5 - Resolved & Closed

Case 6 - Resolved & Closed
Case 7 - Resolved & Closed
Case 8 - Resolved in Mediation

Case # 
Reference Case # Resolution Item Date Due Date Submitted Date Resolved Notes

5 08-17-1374
Report to OCR on all complaints received pursuant to the procedure 
established in Term 1 and the recipient's response(s) 1/25/2019 1/28/2019 2/4/2019

Requested and 
received an 
extension to 
1/28

5 08-17-1374

Training materials regarding sex discrimination to be approved by 
OCR. Related to case 08-17-1374, but with additional requirements. 
Also provide individuals required to attend the training 3/13/2018 3/27/2018

5 08-17-1374 Proposed individual(s) to conduct the training 3/13/2018 3/27/2018

5 08-17-1374
Documentation to demonstrate the training was provided, including 
training sign-in sheets 5/26/2018 8/29/2018 8/30/2018

5 08-17-1374

Provide OCR with assembly materials to conduct an assembly with the 
secondary students to discuss the school's prohibition on sexual 
harassment 1/31/2018

Revision 
requested 3/27

5 08-17-1374 Proposed individual(s) to conduct the assembly 1/31/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 3/27

5 08-17-1374 Additional information requested by OCR regarding the assembly 4/26/2018 4/26/2018 5/11/2018

5 08-17-1374
Documentation to demonstrate the assembly was held, including the 
school's prohibition on sexual harassment 9/15/2018 8/29/2018 8/30/2018

5 08-17-1374
Offer counseling to all students on the team for the fall 2015 and/or fall 
2016 semesters 1/12/2018 3/27/2018

7 08-18-1235

A plan to track the provision of special education, related services, and 
accommodations for students with disabilities (see resolution 
agreement for specific requirements) 7/29/2018 7/26/2018 8/17/2018

7 08-18-1235

A plan to track restraints of students with disabilities, including 
standardized forms, address records retention, and include specific 
information (see resolution agreement for specific requirements) 7/29/2018 7/26/2018 8/17/2018

7 08-18-1235
Updated form to include "time of parent notification" and the "follow up 
actions taken" None Provided 8/17/2018



Key: Summary:
Resolved Case 1 - Resolved & Closed
Duplicate of others Case 2 - Resolved & Closed
Due to the OCR Case 3 - Resolved & Closed
Submitted and awaiting response Case 4 - Resolved & Closed
Waiting for OCR's approval on something 
else before we can complete Case 5 - Resolved & Closed

Case 6 - Resolved & Closed
Case 7 - Resolved & Closed
Case 8 - Resolved in Mediation

Case # 
Reference Case # Resolution Item Date Due Date Submitted Date Resolved Notes

7 08-18-1235
Upon OCR approval of plans pursuant to Term I, a memo will be sent 
to all school staff (see resolution agreement for specific requirements) 8/15/2018 8/15/2018 8/30/2018

7 08-18-1235 Disseminate the approved memo to staff 8/15/2018 8/15/2018 8/30/2018
7 08-18-1235 Documentation to show the memo was disseminated ? 8/15/2018 8/30/2018

7 08-18-1235
Revise the memo to include Section 504's and Title II's requirements 
related to restraints for students with disabilities. ? 8/15/2018 8/30/2018

7 08-18-1235
Documentation to show that Ms. McKenney and Ms. Trujillo received 
the documents and training (regarding restraints) 8/28/2018 8/29/2018 8/30/2018

7 08-18-1235
Documentation to show that Lauren Gibson has received the 
documents and training (regarding restraints) 1/31/2019 1/31/2019 2/7/2019

7 08-18-1235

Convene the student's IEP Team to determine if the student is entitled 
to compensatory services (see resolution agreement for specific 
requirements) 8/28/2018 8/28/2018 8/30/2018

7 08-18-1235
Document the meeting specifics (see resolution agreement for specific 
requirements) 9/8/2018 8/28/2018 8/30/2018

7 08-18-1235
Documentation to show the compensatory services have been 
provided to the student 1/31/2019 1/31/2019

Additional 
Information 
requested 2/7/19

7 08-18-1235

Provide: (a) a written explanation about why technological behavior 
recording system for core subjects; has not been added to the IEP; 
and, if necessary, (b) a plan to add it to the Student’s IEP. 2/22/2019 2/22/2019 3/11/2019



Key: Summary:
Resolved Case 1 - Resolved & Closed
Duplicate of others Case 2 - Resolved & Closed
Due to the OCR Case 3 - Resolved & Closed
Submitted and awaiting response Case 4 - Resolved & Closed
Waiting for OCR's approval on something 
else before we can complete Case 5 - Resolved & Closed

Case 6 - Resolved & Closed
Case 7 - Resolved & Closed
Case 8 - Resolved in Mediation

Case # 
Reference Case # Resolution Item Date Due Date Submitted Date Resolved Notes

7 08-18-1235

1. Provide documentation showing that the Complainant was provided 
with monthly reports of the mental health services and the specialized 
instruction in executive functioning being provided to the Student; OR
2. provide the Complainant with the monthly reports for August 2018, 
September 2018, November 2018, December 2018, and January 
2019, and provide to OCR:
a. documentation showing that the Complainant was provided with the 
monthly reports; 
b. a written explanation about why such reports were not previously 
provided; and 
c. a written plan to ensure such reports are provided to the 
Complainant on a monthly basis for the remainder of the 2018-2019 
school year.
3. The Student’s IEP Amendment, dated August 10, 2018, reads, 
“Added to the Notes section: Parents would like to see monthly reports 
of services provided, to be shared with them by the case manager.” 2/22/2019 2/22/2019 3/11/2019

7 08-18-1235

Provide a report about the student from the period 8/15/18-12/21/18 
including acommodations provided, tracking forms used for 
acommodations, and restraint forms used for restraints 1/31/2019 1/31/2019 2/7/2019

4 08-17-1353 Title IX Coordinator 1/30/2018
Additional requests 
made 12/12/17

4 08-17-1353
Additional requests by OCR related to the training Lynne Allen took 
related to Title IX 12/27/2017

Additional requests 
made 3/23/18

4 08-17-1353
Update regarding the school's search for a permanent Title IX 
Coordinator 6/1/2018 5/31/2018

Update requested 
6/7/18

4 08-17-1353
Update regarding the school's search for a permanent Title IX 
Coordinator 8/31/2018 8/15/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 8/17

4 08-17-1353

Provide a detailed description of Ms. DuPree's qualifications to be the 
school's Title IX Coordinator, including but not limited to, her relevant 
training and professional experieince. 8/31/2018 8/31/2018



Key: Summary:
Resolved Case 1 - Resolved & Closed
Duplicate of others Case 2 - Resolved & Closed
Due to the OCR Case 3 - Resolved & Closed
Submitted and awaiting response Case 4 - Resolved & Closed
Waiting for OCR's approval on something 
else before we can complete Case 5 - Resolved & Closed

Case 6 - Resolved & Closed
Case 7 - Resolved & Closed
Case 8 - Resolved in Mediation

Case # 
Reference Case # Resolution Item Date Due Date Submitted Date Resolved Notes

4 08-17-1353
Designate an interim quaified Title IX Coordinator and report to the 
OCR the name, title, phone number, email address, and quaifications 10/12/2018 10/11/2018

4 08-17-1353
Provide the checklist Ms. Dupree referenced as applicable to Title IX 
Complaints 10/12/2018 10/11/2018

4 08-17-1353

Provide A) a report on Ms. Kisken's activities as the School's interim 
Title IX Coordinator; and B) an update on the plans for a permanent, 
qualified Title IX Coordinator 11/30/2018 11/30/2018 12/13/2018

4 08-17-1353

Interim Title IX Coordinator to remain in place until Ms. Dupree is 
adequately qualified or another TItle Coordinator who is adequately 
quaified is appointed Ongoing

4 08-17-1353
Provide an update on the School progress toward having a permanent, 
qualified Title IX Coordinator 1/25/2019 1/28/2019 6/12/2019

Requested and 
received an 
extension to 
1/28

4 08-17-1353

Provide a revised description of the School’s future permanent, 
qualified Title IX Coordinator’s (or Coordinators’) roles and 
responsibilities. 1/25/2019 1/28/2019 6/12/2019

Requested and 
received an 
extension to 
1/28

4 08-17-1353

Provide the name(s), title(s) or position(s), and qualifications of one or 
more proposed individuals to serve as the School’s Title IX Coordinator
(s) during the 2019-2020 school year (SY) and beyond. 6/14/2019 6/11/2019 6/12/2019

Requested an 
extension from 
5/31 to 6/14

4 08-17-1353

Provide a written description of the Title IX Coordinator’s (or 
Coordinators’) roles and responsibilities for the 2019-2020 SY and 
beyond. 6/14/2019 6/11/2019 6/12/2019

Requested an 
extension from 
5/31 to 6/14

4 08-17-1353

A qualified representative of the District to A) review recent Title IX 
incidents, B) Provide OCR with a report about whether or the School 
appropriately handled each incident. 11/1/18 11/3/2018 11/5/2018

4 08-17-1353 Title IX Coordinator roles and responsiblities 1/30/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 3/23/18



Key: Summary:
Resolved Case 1 - Resolved & Closed
Duplicate of others Case 2 - Resolved & Closed
Due to the OCR Case 3 - Resolved & Closed
Submitted and awaiting response Case 4 - Resolved & Closed
Waiting for OCR's approval on something 
else before we can complete Case 5 - Resolved & Closed

Case 6 - Resolved & Closed
Case 7 - Resolved & Closed
Case 8 - Resolved in Mediation

Case # 
Reference Case # Resolution Item Date Due Date Submitted Date Resolved Notes

4 08-17-1353
Revised Community Handbook adding the Title IX coordinator's name, 
title, position, etc 10/12/2018

4 08-17-1353 Training materials presented to OCR about sex discriminiation 3/1/2018
Revision 
requested 3/23

4 08-17-1353 Revised training materials requested by OCR 4/22/2018 3/29/2018 6/7/2018
4 08-17-1353 Name(s) and title(s) of proposed individuals to train staff 3/1/2018 ? 6/7/2018

4 08-17-1353
Train staff about sex discrimination once training materials are 
approved 8/6/2018 8/15/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 8/17

Requested an 
extension to 
train in August 

4 08-17-1353 Specifics of the training (time, place, agenda, etc) 8/15/2018 8/17/2018

4 08-17-1353

Documentation to show the date, time, and location that each of the 
eight individuals received the training that were not previously able to. 
If they're not able to be trained by 9/17/18 please provide a written 
explanation for each staff member not being trained 9/28/2018 9/12/18 10/12/2018

4 08-17-1353 Title IX Discrimination Report Form 1/30/2018 3/23/2018
4 08-17-1353 Additional requests by OCR related to the Title IX Report Form 12/27/2017 3/23/2018

4 08-17-1353

Approved TItle IX Report Form posted to the website, revised 
Community Handbook, and written assurances the form will be 
provided to anyone who raises concerns 4/22/2018 4/22? 6/7/2018

4 08-17-1353 Community Handbook that inlcudes the Report Form 8/31/2018 8/31/2018 10/12/2018
4 08-17-1353 Invite the complainant to a meeting 12/16/2017 12/12/2017

4 08-17-1353 Update regarding the status of meeting with the complainant 1/11/2018
See monitoring 
letter 3/23

4 08-17-1353
Meeting with the complainant (if the complainant agrees to the 
meeting) 6/7/2018

4 08-17-1353
Specifics of the meeting (time, date, place, etc) (if the complainant 
agrees to the meeting) 6/7/2018



Key: Summary:
Resolved Case 1 - Resolved & Closed
Duplicate of others Case 2 - Resolved & Closed
Due to the OCR Case 3 - Resolved & Closed
Submitted and awaiting response Case 4 - Resolved & Closed
Waiting for OCR's approval on something 
else before we can complete Case 5 - Resolved & Closed

Case 6 - Resolved & Closed
Case 7 - Resolved & Closed
Case 8 - Resolved in Mediation

Case # 
Reference Case # Resolution Item Date Due Date Submitted Date Resolved Notes

4 08-17-1353 Safety plan and services for Students 6/1/2018 5/31/2018 6/7/2018

4 08-17-1353

Submit to OCR all reports, grievances, or complaints regarding peer-
on-peer sexual harassment among school students, if any, whether 
oral or written, from 12/1/17 - 5/31/18 as well as the responses 6/22/2018 6/18/2018

4 08-17-1353 Follow up questions by OCR regarding reported sexual harassment 7/19/2018 7/18/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 7/23

4 08-17-1353
Provide OCR with a plan to provide the Elementary Principal additional 
Title IX training 8/12/2018 8/12/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 8/17

4 08-17-1353
Send a letter to the affected student's parents informing them of their 
rights under Title IX 8/12/2018 8/12/2018 10/12/2018

4 08-17-1353

Provide a list of the "regular [Title IX] trainings provided by the District" 
that the Principal will attend during the 2018-2019 school year, 
including for each training, the date and topic 9/28/2018 9/27/2018 10/12/2018

4 08-17-1353

Submit to OCR all reports, grievances, or complaints regarding peer-
on-peer sexual harassment among school students, if any, whether 
oral or written, from 8/1/18 - 12/31/18 as well as the responses 1/25/2019 1/28/2019 2/4/2019

Requested and 
received an 
extension to 
1/28

6 08-17-1361 Climate survey submitted to OCR 12/31/2017 3/27/2018

6 08-17-1361 Administer the approved climate survey to the staff 4/11/2018 4/11/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 5/16/18

6 08-17-1361 Remedial measures recommended by the OCR implemented n/a

6 08-17-1361

Provide the comments collected via the survey (as opposed to the 
summary document provided to date) and any further explanation or 
description of actions the Board wishes to offer with respect to other 
measures taken to date. 6/15/2018 6/15/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 7/3/18



Key: Summary:
Resolved Case 1 - Resolved & Closed
Duplicate of others Case 2 - Resolved & Closed
Due to the OCR Case 3 - Resolved & Closed
Submitted and awaiting response Case 4 - Resolved & Closed
Waiting for OCR's approval on something 
else before we can complete Case 5 - Resolved & Closed

Case 6 - Resolved & Closed
Case 7 - Resolved & Closed
Case 8 - Resolved in Mediation

Case # 
Reference Case # Resolution Item Date Due Date Submitted Date Resolved Notes

6 08-17-1361
Reconsider and submit a detailed report as to what other remedial 
measures are appropriate and are being implemented at the School. 8/2/2018 8/1/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 9/21/18

6 08-17-1361

Draft follow up survey, and training materials, if applicable, of the the 
new HR Manager and Title IX Coordinator's efforts to continue to 
increase staff awareness and availability of HR resources available to 
them for expressing concerns or filing complaints 10/21/2018 10/20/2018

Additional 
Information 
requested 10/25

6 08-17-1361 Report on the status of the survey being conducted with WEEAC. 11/26/2018 11/26/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 12/17

6 08-17-1361

Provide OCR with a copy of the proposed climate survey instrument; a 
list of all staff, by name and job title, to whom the survey will be 
administered; and a description of how and when the survey will be 
administered, including the identity of the person compiling the survey 
results. 12/31/2018 12/21/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 12/26

6 08-17-1361
OCR requested specific revisions to the survey questions, consent 
form, and email to the staff 1/25/2019 12/28/2018 1/2/2019

6 08-17-1361
The Board will administer the climate survey to staff, providing a period 
to respond of no fewer than 7 days. 1/21/2019 3/7/2019 3/14/2019

Survey was 
conducted and 
closed on 1/21. 
Submission to 
OCR will be 
made with 
March report



Key: Summary:
Resolved Case 1 - Resolved & Closed
Duplicate of others Case 2 - Resolved & Closed
Due to the OCR Case 3 - Resolved & Closed
Submitted and awaiting response Case 4 - Resolved & Closed
Waiting for OCR's approval on something 
else before we can complete Case 5 - Resolved & Closed

Case 6 - Resolved & Closed
Case 7 - Resolved & Closed
Case 8 - Resolved in Mediation

Case # 
Reference Case # Resolution Item Date Due Date Submitted Date Resolved Notes

6 08-17-1361

The Board will provide (1) the District a copy of the survey results, and 
(2) OCR documentation of (a) the survey results and (b) the Board’s 
determination as to whether any further revisions to its 
nondiscrimination (including non-retaliation) policies, practices, or 
procedures, additional staff training, or other remedial measures are 
appropriate, and if so, a description of those measures, including a 
timeline for implementation, which shall be no longer than 90 days after 
the administration of the climate survey. 3/7/2019 3/7/2019 3/14/2019

6 08-17-1361

Within 15 days of the last of any remedial measures being
implementing, the Board will provide OCR documentation of its efforts 
to implement the remedial
measures.

Additional 
Information 
Provided 3/14/19

6 08-17-1361

Please provide, within 15 calendar days of the aforementioned fall 
2019 training, a report and documentation regarding implementation of 
the four remedial measures planned by the School. Fall, 2019 8/26/2019 8/28/19

6 08-17-1361
Please submit a monitoring report for the October 14th (Conflict 
Resolution) training 10/29/2019 10/22/2019 10/25/2019

6 08-17-1361

Report on the status of additional measures being taken to increase 
staff awareness of HR Resources (see monitoring letter from 10/25 for 
specific details) 11/26/2018 11/26/2018 12/17/2018

6 08-17-1361
Any response, explanation, or additional information related to the 
March and August emails 10/21/2018 10/20/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 10/25

6 08-17-1361

Report on the relevant training provided by the interim Title IX 
Coordinator to Board members, addressing topic(s) covered by current 
District Agreements enforced by OCR and identifying members present 11/26/2018 11/26/2018 12/17/18

6 08-17-1361 Complaint policy for staff submitted to OCR 12/31/2017
Revision 
requested 3/27/18

6 08-17-1361 Revised complaint policy requested by OCR 4/26/2018 4/26/2018
revision requested 
5/16/18



Key: Summary:
Resolved Case 1 - Resolved & Closed
Duplicate of others Case 2 - Resolved & Closed
Due to the OCR Case 3 - Resolved & Closed
Submitted and awaiting response Case 4 - Resolved & Closed
Waiting for OCR's approval on something 
else before we can complete Case 5 - Resolved & Closed

Case 6 - Resolved & Closed
Case 7 - Resolved & Closed
Case 8 - Resolved in Mediation

Case # 
Reference Case # Resolution Item Date Due Date Submitted Date Resolved Notes

6 08-17-1361 Disseminate approved complaint policy to staff
6 08-17-1361 Document disseminated complaint policy to staff

6 08-17-1361
Document the complaint policy has been sent to staff and community 
on 6/15 and at the beginning of the school year 8/31/2018 8/17/2018 9/21/2001

6 08-17-1361 Revised training materials related to retaliation requested by OCR 6/15/2018 6/15/2018 7/3/2018

6 08-17-1361
Provide OCR a description of, and any documents related to, all 
reports, grievances, or complaints from staff 5/31/2018 6/4/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 7/3/18

6 08-17-1361
Report as to whether and how the retaliation concern was followed up 
on and provide any supporting documentation 8/2/2018 8/1/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 9/21/18

6 08-17-1361

Provide OCR the Board's acknowledgment of receipt of the email and 
a description, with supporting documentation if any, of the new Title IX 
Coordinator's follow up efforts, if any 10/21/2018 10/20/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 
10/25/18

6 08-17-1361

Provide an update as to whether the staff member 1) responded to the 
10/11 email and if so the Board's response. 2) any action(s) taken by 
the interim Title IX Coordinator. 11/26/2018 11/26/2018 12/17/2018

6 08-17-1361
Provide OCR a description of, and any documents related to, all 
reports, grievances, or complaints from staff 1/31/2019 1/25/2019 2/4/2019

Requested 
extension to 
1/31/2019 on 
12/21/2018  |  
Reported with 
case #08-17-
1374

6 08-17-1361
Revised staff handbook to add language related to OCR approved staff 
complaint procedure 8/2/2018 8/1/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 9/21/18



Key: Summary:
Resolved Case 1 - Resolved & Closed
Duplicate of others Case 2 - Resolved & Closed
Due to the OCR Case 3 - Resolved & Closed
Submitted and awaiting response Case 4 - Resolved & Closed
Waiting for OCR's approval on something 
else before we can complete Case 5 - Resolved & Closed

Case 6 - Resolved & Closed
Case 7 - Resolved & Closed
Case 8 - Resolved in Mediation

Case # 
Reference Case # Resolution Item Date Due Date Submitted Date Resolved Notes

6 08-17-1361

Revise Staff Handbook to add: effective notice of School's Title IX, 
Section 504, and Title II Coordinator(s), including name, position, 
phone number, email address, and mailing address(es) 10/21/2018 10/21/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 9/21/18

6 08-17-1361

Revise the "Complaint Procedure" and "Problem Resolution" 
procedures to consistently reference the OCR approved "Governance 
Board Communication and Complaint Policy" 10/21/2018 10/20/2018

Additional 
information 
requested 9/21/18

6 08-17-1361

Revise Staff Handbook to state "concerns involving allegations or 
unlawful employment discrimination, sexual harassment, wage and 
hour violations or other perceived, unlawful treatment..." should be 
brought to the Title IX Coordinator. 11/26/2018 11/26/2018 12/26/2018

6 08-17-1361 Disseminate the OCR approved staff handbook to the staff 1/1/2019 12/28/2018

6 08-17-1361 Document disseminated staff handbook to the staff 1/16/2019 12/28/2018

Additional 
information 
requested

6 08-17-1361 Document the staff handbook has been posted to the website 1/25/2019 1/25/2019 2/4/2019

6 08-17-1361
Training materials related to retalition sent to OCR for approval, 
including indivuals who will administer the training 3/21/2018

Revision 
requested 3/27/18

6 08-17-1361 Revised training materials requested by OCR 4/26/2018 4/9/2018
Revision 
requested 5/16/18

6 08-17-1361 Revised training materials requested by OCR 6/15/2018 6/13/2018 7/3/2018
6 08-17-1361 Document the training was administered, including sign up sheets 8/31/2018 9/12/2018 9/21/2018

6 08-17-1361

Provide OCR a list of all reference checks for the Complainant 
received during the relevant time period and a description of the 
school's repsonse 5/31/2018 5/31/2018 7/3/2018

6 08-17-1361

Provide OCR a list of all reference checks for the Complainant 
received during the relevant time period and a description of the 
school's response 12/31/2018 12/28/2018 1/2/2019

6 08-17-1361 Payments made to the complainant 12/31/2018 3/27/2018
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